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Item 5. Other Events.

On June 13, 2001, the Registrant filed a Final Prospectus pursuant to Rule
424(b) (1) of the Securities Act of 1933 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission in connection with the initial public offering of 280,000,000 shares
of the Registrant's Class A common stock at an initial public offering price of
$31.00 per share. A copy of the Final Prospectus is attached as Exhibit 99.1.

All information contained in the Final Prospectus under the following
sections is incorporated by reference into this Form 8-K:

Dividend Policy;
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information;
Selected Historical Combined Financial and Other Data;

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations;

Business;

Management;

Sole Shareholder;

Relationship with Philip Morris; and

Index to Financial Statements (including all financial statements
appearing at pages F-1 through F-78 of the Final Prospectus).

In addition, the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and the related
financial statement schedule, each of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 99.2
and was originally filed as part of the Registrant's Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (No. 333-57162), is incorporated by reference into this Form 8-K.

Since formation, the Registrant has issued the following securities that
were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
"Securities Act"):

On December 8, 2000, the Registrant issued 275,000,000 shares of its Class
A common stock to Philip Morris Companies Inc. On December 11, 2000, the
Registrant issued 1,180,000,000 shares of its Class B common stock to Philip
Morris Companies Inc. Each issuance was made in reliance upon an exemption from
the registration provisions of the Securities Act set forth in section 4(2)
thereof relating to sales by an issuer not involving a public offering. The
foregoing securities are deemed restricted securities for purposes of the
Securities Act.



Item 7. Financial Statements, Pro Forma Financial Information and Exhibits.
(a) Financial Statements.

Kraft Foods Inc. and Subsidiaries:
Report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Accountants

Combined Balance Sheets At December 31, 1999 and 2000

Combined Statements of Earnings For the Years Ended December 31,
1998, 1999 and 2000

Combined Statements of Shareholder's Equity For the Years Ended
December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000

Combined Statements of Cash Flows For the Years Ended December 31,
1998, 1999 and 2000

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

Unaudited Condensed Combined Balance Sheets At December 31, 2000 and
March 31, 2001

Unaudited Condensed Combined Statements of Earnings For the Three
Months Ended March 31, 2000 and 2001

Unaudited Condensed Combined Statements of Shareholder's Equity For
the Year Ended December 31, 2000 and the Three Months Ended March 31, 2001

Unaudited Condensed Combined Statements of Cash Flows For the Three
Months Ended March 31, 2000 and 2001

Unaudited Notes to Condensed Combined Financial Statements

Nabisco Holdings Corp.:
Report of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Auditors

Consolidated Balance Sheets At December 31, 1998 and 1999

Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) For the Years Ended
December 31, 1997, 1998 and 1999

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) For the Years
Ended December 31, 1997, 1998 and 1999

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows For the Years Ended December
31, 1997, 1998 and 1999

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity For the Years Ended
December 31, 1997, 1998 and 1999

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Unaudited Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet At September 30, 2000

Unaudited Consolidated Condensed Statements of Income For the Nine
Months Ended September 30, 1999 and 2000

Unaudited Consolidated Condensed Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Nine Ended September 30, 1999 and 2000



Unaudited Consolidated Condensed Statements of Cash Flows For the
Nine Months Ended September 30, 1999 and 2000

Unaudited Notes to Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements

(b) Pro Forma Financial Information.
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Earnings For the Year Ended
December 31, 2000 (Unaudited).

(c) Exhibits.

Exhibit Description
No. e

3.1 Registrant's Articles of Incorporation(1)

3.2 Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the
Registrant(1)

3.3 Registrant's Amended and Restated Bylaws(4)

4.1 The Registrant agrees to furnish copies of any instruments defining
the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Registrant and its
consolidated subsidiaries that does not exceed 10 percent of the total
assets of the Registrant and its consolidated subsidiaries to the
Commission upon request.

10.1 Corporate Agreement between Philip Morris Companies Inc. and Kraft
Foods Inc.(4)

10.2 Services Agreement between Philip Morris Management Corp. and Kraft
Foods Inc. (including Exhibits)(3)

10.3 Tax-Sharing Agreement between Philip Morris Companies Inc. and Kraft
Foods Inc.(2)

10.4 2001 Kraft Performance Incentive Plan(4)
10.5 2001 Kraft Non-Employee Director Plan(2)

10.6.1 Form of Employment Agreement entered into by Philip Morris Companies
Inc. with each of Betsy D. Holden and Roger K. Deromedi(2)

10.6.2 Employment Agreement between Philip Morris Companies Inc. and Calvin
J. Collier(2)

10.7 Kraft Foods, Inc. Supplemental Benefits Plan I (including First
Amendment adding Supplement A)(2)

10.8 Kraft Foods, Inc. Supplemental Benefits Plan II(2)

10.9 Form of Employee Grantor Trust Enrollment Agreement(5)(10)



10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

21

99.1

99.2

The Philip Morris 1992 Incentive Compensation and Stock Option
Plan(6)(10)

The Philip Morris 1987 Long Term Incentive Plan(7)(10)

1997 Performance Incentive Plan(8)(10)

2000 Performance Incentive Plan(9)(10)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant(1)

Kraft Foods Inc. Final Prospectus dated June 12, 2001 forming a part
of the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-57162) (only such
portions of the Final Prospectus as are incorporated into this Form 8-

K by reference are deemed to be filed herewith)

Schedule II, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts, and related Report of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Accountants

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

Incorporated by reference to the same numbered Exhibit to the
Registrant's Form S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 16, 2001 (No. 333-57162).

Incorporated by reference to the same numbered Exhibit to the
Registrant's Amendment No. 1 to Form S-1 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 2, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to the same numbered Exhibit to the
Registrant's Amendment No. 2 to Form S-1 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 11, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to the same numbered Exhibit to the
Registrant's Amendment No. 5 to Form S-1 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on June 8, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 of the Annual Report on Form
10-K of Philip Morris Companies Inc. for the year ended December 31,
1995 (SEC File No. 1-8940).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Annual Report on Form
10-K of Philip Morris Companies Inc. for the year ended December 31,
1997 (SEC File No. 1-8940).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the Annual Report on Form
10-K of Philip Morris Companies Inc. for the year ended December 31,
1997 (SEC File No. 1-8940).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of the Proxy Statement of Philip
Morris Companies Inc. dated March 10, 1997 (SEC File No. 1-8940).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of the Proxy Statement of Philip
Morris Companies Inc. dated March 10, 2000 (SEC File No. 1-8940).

Compensation plans maintained by Philip Morris and its subsidiaries in
which officers of the Registrant participated historically.



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

KRAFT FOODS INC.

By: /s/ Calvin J. Collier
Name: Calvin J. Collier
Title: Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary
Date: August 10, 2001
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10.6.2

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11
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99.1

Registrant's Articles of Incorporation(1)

Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the
Registrant(1)

Registrant's Amended and Restated Bylaws(4)

The Registrant agrees to furnish copies of any instruments defining
the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Registrant and its

consolidated subsidiaries that does not exceed 10 percent of the total

assets of the Registrant and its consolidated subsidiaries to the
Commission upon request.

Corporate Agreement between Philip Morris Companies Inc. and Kraft
Foods Inc.(4)

Services Agreement between Philip Morris Management Corp. and Kraft
Foods Inc. (including Exhibits)(3)

Tax-Sharing Agreement between Philip Morris Companies Inc. and Kraft
Foods Inc.(2)

2001 Kraft Performance Incentive Plan(4)
2001 Kraft Non-Employee Director Plan(2)

Form of Employment Agreement entered into by Philip Morris Companies
Inc. with each of Betsy D. Holden and Roger K. Deromedi(2)

Employment Agreement between Philip Morris Companies Inc. and Calvin
J. Collier(2)

Kraft Foods, Inc. Supplemental Benefits Plan I (including First
Amendment adding Supplement A)(2)

Kraft Foods, Inc. Supplemental Benefits Plan II(2)
Form of Employee Grantor Trust Enrollment Agreement(5)(10)

The Philip Morris 1992 Incentive Compensation and Stock Option
Plan(6)(10)

The Philip Morris 1987 Long Term Incentive Plan(7)(10)
1997 Performance Incentive Plan(8)(10)

2000 Performance Incentive Plan(9)(10)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant(1)

Kraft Foods Inc. Final Prospectus dated June 12, 2001 forming a part
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99.2

Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-57162) (only such
provisions of the Final Prospectus as are incorporated into this Form
8-K by reference are deemed to be filed herewith)

Schedule II, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts, and related Report of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Accountants

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

Incorporated by reference to the same numbered Exhibit to the
Registrant's Form S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 16, 2001 (No. 333-57162).

Incorporated by reference to the same numbered Exhibit to the
Registrant's Amendment No. 1 to Form S-1 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 2, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to the same numbered Exhibit to the
Registrant's Amendment No. 2 to Form S-1 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 11, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to the same numbered Exhibit to the
Registrant's Amendment No. 5 to Form S-1 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on June 8, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 of the Annual Report on Form
10-K of Philip Morris Companies Inc. for the year ended December 31,
1995 (SEC File No. 1-8940).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Annual Report on Form
10-K of Philip Morris Companies Inc. for the year ended December 31,
1997 (SEC File No. 1-8940).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the Annual Report on Form
10-K of Philip Morris Companies Inc. for the year ended December 31,
1997 (SEC File No. 1-8940).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of the Proxy Statement of Philip
Morris Companies Inc. dated March 10, 1997 (SEC File No. 1-8940).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of the Proxy Statement of Philip
Morris Companies Inc. dated March 10, 2000 (SEC File No. 1-8940).

Compensation plans maintained by Philip Morris and its subsidiaries in
which officers of the Registrant participated historically.



Exhibit 99.1
280,000,000 Shares
[KRAFT LOGO]
Kraft Foods Inc.

Class A Common Stock

This is our initial public offering and no public market currently exists
for our shares.

We are currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of Philip Morris Companies Inc.
Upon completion of this offering, Philip Morris will own 49.5% of our Class A
common stock and 100% of our Class B common stock. Each share of Class A
common stock has one vote and each share of Class B common stock has ten
votes. Accordingly, following this offering, Philip Morris will own common
stock representing 97.7% of the combined voting power of our common stock.

Our shares have been authorized for listing on the New York Stock Exchange
under the symbol "KFT."

We have granted the underwriters an option to purchase up to an additional
28,000,000 shares of our Class A common stock to cover over-allotments.

Investing in our Class A common stock involves risks. See "Risk Factors"
beginning on page 7.

Per Share Total
Initial public offering price............ $31.0000 $8, 680,000, 000
Underwriting discount.................... $ 0.8471 $ 237,181,000
Proceeds, before expenses, to Kraft...... $30.1529 $8,442,819, 000

The underwriters expect to deliver the shares of Class A common stock on or
about June 18, 2001.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities
commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the
accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is
a criminal offense.

Credit Suisse First Boston Salomon Smith Barney

Deutsche Banc Alex. Brown

JPMorgan
Morgan Stanley Dean Witter
UBS Warburg
BNP PARIBAS HSBC Lehman Brothers
Blaylock & Partners, L.P.
Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein Prudential Securities
Ramirez & Co., Inc. Sanford C. Bernstein & Co., LLC

Utendahl Capital Partners, L.P.

Prospectus dated June 12, 2001



[Inside Front Cover Artwork and Graphics:

Approximately 1 1/2 inches down from the top of the page is written the
following text centered on the page: "Our superior brand portfolio has seven
brands with over $1 billion in sales . . .". Below the text appear the logos of
our seven billion dollar brands: Philadelphia, Nabisco, Oscar Mayer, Kraft,
Maxwell House, Jacobs and Post.]

[Front Gatefold Artwork and Graphics:

Across the top of the gatefold is written the following text: "........ and a
total of sixty-one brands with over $100 million in sales, sold in over 140
countries." Below the text appear pictures of our products which represent our
sixty-one brands with over $100 million in sales: A.1. steak sauce, Freia
confectionery, Post cereal, Tang drink mix, Tombstone pizza, Cote d'Or candy,
Knudsen sour cream, DiGiorno pizza, Sathers confectionery, Polly-0 cheese,
Newtons cookies, Cool Whip whipped toppings, Royal desserts, Kraft Minute Brand
rice, Kraft Macaroni & Cheese Dinners, Oscar Mayer hot dogs, Nabisco Grahams
crackers, Wheat Thins crackers, Original Milk-Bone Brand dog biscuits, Gevalia
coffee, Kool-Aid drink mix, Jacobs coffee, Triscuit crackers, Jack's Pizza,
Premium crackers, Oscar Mayer Lunchables Lunch Combinations, Breyer's All
Natural Yogurt, Capri Sun All Natural juice drinks, Jacques Vabre coffee,
Suchard confectionery, Miracle Whip dressing, Cracker Barrel cheese, Jell-O
desserts, Ritz crackers, Oreo cookies, Milka confectionery, Louis Rich bacon,
Planters nuts, Lacta confectionery, Stove Top Oven Classic stuffing mix, Kenco
coffee, Handi-Snacks snack combinations, Maxwell House coffee, Claussen Cold
Crisp Delicious pickles, Marabou confectionery, SnackWell's cookies, Chips
Ahoy! cookies, Kaffee HAG coffee, Country Time drink mix, Crystal Light drink
mix, Carte Noire coffee, Kraft Velveeta prepared cheese product, Philadelphia
cream cheese, Altoids candy, General Foods International Coffees flavored
coffees, Terry's chocolate, All Natural Breakstone's cottage cheese, Cheez Whiz
process cheese sauce, Toblerone chocolate, Life Savers candy and Balance energy
bars.]
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

You should read the following summary together with the more detailed
information regarding us and our Class A common stock being sold in this
offering and our historical and pro forma combined financial statements
included elsewhere in this prospectus.

KRAFT

We are the largest branded food and beverage company headquartered in the
United States and the second largest in the world based on 2000 revenue on a
pro forma basis for our acquisition of Nabisco. We have a superior brand
portfolio created and supported through dynamic product innovation, worldclass
marketing, experienced management, global scale and strategic acquisitions. Our
brands are sold in more than 140 countries and, according to A.C. Nielsen, are
enjoyed in 99.6% of the households in the United States. Consumers of all ages
around the world enjoy our brands, whether at home or away from home, across
the entire spectrum of food and beverage occasions: breakfast, lunch, dinner
and snacks. We employ approximately 117,000 persons, including more than 20,000
salespersons deployed in 60 countries, and we have 228 manufacturing facilities
around the world.

In December 2000, to expand our global presence and to strengthen our
position in the fast growing snacks consumer sector, we acquired Nabisco
Holdings Corp., the largest manufacturer and marketer of cookies and crackers
in the world based on retail sales. Together with Nabisco, we would have
reported 2000 pro forma revenue of $34.7 billion and 2000 pro forma earnings
before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization of $6.3 billion.

We hold the #1 global share position in eleven product categories. In the
United States, based on dollar shares, we hold the #1 share position in 23 of
our 25 most profitable categories or, based on volume or equivalent unit
shares, in 21 of these 25 categories. In addition, based on volume or
equivalent unit shares, we hold the #1 share position in 21 of our 25 most
profitable international country categories. Our portfolio includes 61 brands
with 2000 revenue over $100 million, accounting for 75% of our 2000 pro forma
revenue. Seven of our brands, listed below, had 2000 revenue over $1 billion,
accounting for 40% of our 2000 pro forma revenue:

Kraft--the #1 cheese brand in the world, as well as our best known brand
for salad and spoonable dressings, packaged dinners, barbecue sauce and
other products;

Nabisco--the umbrella brand for the #1 cookie and cracker business in
the world, including nine of our $100 million brands;

Oscar Mayer--the #1 processed meats brand in the United States;
Post--the #3 brand of ready-to-eat cereals in the United States;
Maxwell House--one of the leading coffee brands in the world;
Philadelphia--the #1 cream cheese brand in the world; and
Jacobs--the #1 roast and ground coffee brand in Western Europe.
Kraft Foods North America accounted for $25.3 billion, or 73%, of our 2000
pro forma revenue. Kraft Foods International, which operates in 63 countries

and sells its products in more than 140 countries, accounted for $9.4 billion,
or 27%, of our 2000 pro forma revenue.



OUR GOALS, STRENGTHS AND STRATEGIES
Our Goals

Our long-term mission is to be recognized as the undisputed leader of the
global food and beverage industry. To that end, we strive to be:

the first choice of our consumers;

an indispensable partner to our retailers and other customers;
the most desired partner for strategic alliances;

the employer of choice in our industry;

a responsible citizen in our communities; and

a consistent producer of industry-leading financial performance and
returns for our investors.

Since 1998, our volume grew at a compound annual rate of 1.7%, our net
earnings grew at a compound annual rate of 10.7% and our net earnings,
excluding amortization of goodwill, grew at a compound annual rate of 8.0%. Our
financial targets, which include the impact of the Nabisco acquisition, are to
achieve the following growth rates versus 2000 pro forma as adjusted results
over the next three years:

compound annual volume growth between 3% and 4%,
compound annual net earnings growth between 18% and 22%; and

compound annual net earnings growth, excluding amortization of goodwill,
between 14% and 16%.

Net earnings amounts reflect the application of the net proceeds from this
offering of approximately $8.4 billion to retire a portion of our $11.0 billion
long-term note payable to Philip Morris.

Our Strengths
Our strengths are:

our superior brand portfolio--our brands enjoy consumer loyalty, trust
and satisfaction, and offer our retail customers a strong combination of
growth and profitability;

our innovative products supported by worldclass marketing--we nurture
the growth of our brands by developing new and innovative products and
line and geographic extensions and supporting them with effective
advertising and promotions;

our successful portfolio management--a key contributor to our growth and
financial returns has been our proven ability to strengthen our
portfolio through acquisitions and divestitures;

our global scale--our size and scope enable us to be more efficient and
effective in serving our customers worldwide and to expand our brands
geographically while reducing costs and improving productivity and
margins; and

our management's proven ability to execute--we have an experienced
management team committed to achieving superior performance.

2



Our Strategies

We intend to create superior value for our investors by continuing to
execute our proven growth and operating strategies. We achieve significant
benefits from our scale by applying the following strategies across our entire
global organization:

accelerate growth of core brands--grow our brands by:
-- focusing on consumer sectors with attractive growth characteristics;

-- addressing consumer needs, including convenience and health and
wellness;

-- expanding our presence in faster growing distribution channels; and

-- targeting attractive demographic and economic segments in each
market;

drive global category leadership--attain and expand the leading position
in our core categories across our key markets in order to capture a
higher share of each category's growth and profit;

optimize our portfolio--actively manage our business and brand portfolio
through acquisitions, divestitures and licensing arrangements to improve
the growth profile and profitability of our business;

maximize operating efficiency--drive excess costs and unproductive
assets out of our system and realize synergies from our acquisition of
Nabisco, while emphasizing product quality and customer service; and

build employee and organizational excellence--invest significant
resources in training, development and career management and utilize
employee measurement and compensation systems, all designed to achieve
our success in the marketplace.

Our principal executive offices are located at Three Lakes Drive,
Northfield, Illinois 60093 and our telephone number is (847) 646-2000.

3



THE OFFERING

Class A common stock
offered................ 280,000,000 shares

Common stock to be
outstanding immediately
after this offering
Class A.......civvinnn. 555,000,000 shares
Class B.......vvvunnnnn 1,180,000,000 shares

Common stock to be held
by Philip Morris
immediately after
this offering

Class A..oiiiiiiiinnnnn 275,000,000 shares (49.5% of outstanding)
Class B........vovunnnn 1,180,000,000 shares (100% of outstanding)
Common stock voting
rights
Class A......oviiiinnnn One vote per share
Class B..vvvvvvnnnnnnnn Ten votes per share
Use of proceeds......... We intend to use the net proceeds of the offering to
retire a portion of our long-term notes payable to Philip
Morris.
Dividend policy......... We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends on our Class

A and Class B common stock at the initial annual rate of
$0.52 per share, depending on our financial results and
action by our board of directors.

New York Stock Exchange
symbol............uun. KFT

Risk factors............ See "Risk Factors" and the other information included in
this prospectus for a discussion of factors you should
carefully consider before deciding to invest in shares of
our Class A common stock.

The number of shares of Class A common stock to be outstanding after this
offering excludes:

28,000,000 shares issuable upon exercise of the underwriters' over-
allotment option;

21,322,596 shares issuable upon exercise of employee stock options to be
granted by us concurrently with this offering at an option price equal
to the initial public offering price on the cover page of this
prospectus; and

54,612,904 additional shares available for future issuance under our
stock option and incentive plans.

OUR RELATIONSHIP WITH PHILIP MORRIS

We are currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of Philip Morris Companies Inc.
Upon completion of this offering, Philip Morris will own 49.5% of our
outstanding Class A common stock, or 47.2% if the underwriters exercise their
over-allotment option in full, and 100% of our outstanding Class B common
stock, giving it 97.7% of the combined voting power of our outstanding common
stock, or 97.5% if the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option in
full. Philip Morris will have the ability to direct the election of members of
our board of directors and to determine the outcome of other matters submitted
to the vote of our shareholders.

Philip Morris has advised us that its current intent is to continue to hold
all of our common stock owned by it following this offering, other than shares
of our Class A common stock subject to stock options granted by Philip Morris
to its employees. However, Philip Morris is not subject to any contractual
obligation to maintain its share ownership, except that Philip Morris has
agreed not to sell or otherwise dispose of any shares of our common stock for a
period of 180 days after the date of this prospectus without the prior written
consent of the underwriters.



SUMMARY HISTORICAL AND PRO FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL AND
OTHER DATA

The following table presents our summary historical and pro forma combined
financial and other data and should be read along with "Pro Forma Condensed
Combined Financial Information," "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations," the Kraft combined financial
statements, the Nabisco consolidated financial statements, and the accompanying
notes to those statements included in this prospectus.

On December 11, 2000, we acquired all of the outstanding shares of Nabisco
for $55 per share in cash. We have accounted for the acquisition as a purchase.
Nabisco's balance sheet has been consolidated with our balance sheet as of
December 31, 2000; however, Nabisco's earnings from December 11, 2000 through
December 31, 2000, have not been included in our combined operating results
because the amounts were insignificant. Our interest cost of $65 million
associated with acquiring Nabisco has been included in interest and other debt
expense, net, in our combined statement of earnings for the year ended December
31, 2000. Nabisco's earnings have been included in our combined operating
results for the first quarter of 2001.

Our pro forma results of operations data present:

our pro forma results of operations for the year ended December 31,
2000, as if the acquisition of Nabisco had occurred on January 1, 2000;
and

our pro forma as adjusted results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2000, as if this offering had been completed on January 1,
2000, at the initial public offering price of $31.00 per share and
assuming the underwriters do not exercise their over-allotment option,
with the net proceeds being used to retire a portion of our $11.0
billion long-term note payable to Philip Morris.

Our as adjusted balance sheet and statement of earnings data as of March 31,
2001 and for the quarter ended March 31, 2001, present, using the same
assumptions and application of the net proceeds described above:

our as adjusted financial position as of March 31, 2001, as if this
offering had been completed on March 31, 2001; and

our as adjusted results of operations for the quarter ended March 31,
2001, as if this offering had been completed on January 1, 2001.

Our pro forma and as adjusted results are not necessarily indicative of what
actually would have occurred if the acquisition had been consummated, and this
offering had been completed, on the dates indicated, nor are they necessarily
indicative of our future operating results.

We define EBITDA as earnings before interest and other debt expense, net;
provision for income taxes; depreciation; and amortization. We believe that
EBITDA is a measure commonly used by analysts and investors. Accordingly, we
have disclosed this information to permit a more complete analysis of our
operating performance. EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or as a
substitute for net earnings or other results of operations data or cash flow
data prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States as a measure of our profitability or liquidity. EBITDA, as we
calculate it, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by
other companies.

We define operating companies income as operating income before amortization
of goodwill and corporate expenses. We use this measure to report our segment
profitability under accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.



We also evaluate our operating results and the performance of our businesses
by reviewing underlying results, including underlying operating revenue,
underlying operating companies income and underlying operating companies income
margin. Underlying results reflect the results of our business operations,
excluding significant one-time items for employee separation programs, write-
downs of property, plant and equipment, estimated sales made in advance of the
century date change and gains (losses) on sales of businesses. Underlying
results also exclude the operating results of businesses that have been sold.
Accordingly, we have disclosed underlying results to permit a more complete
analysis of our operating performance. Underlying operating companies income
should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for net earnings or
other results of operations data prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

We calculate operating companies income margin by dividing operating
companies income by operating revenue. We calculate underlying operating
companies income margin by dividing underlying operating companies income by
underlying operating revenue.

First Quarter Ended

Year Ended December 31, March 31,
Pro Pro Forma
Forma as Adjusted as Adjusted
1998 1999 2000 2000 2000 2000 2001 2001

(in millions, except per share data)

Statement of Earnings

Data:
Operating revenue...... $27,311 $26,797 $ 26,532 $34,679 $34,679 $ 6,460 $ 8,367 $ 8,367
Cost of sales.......... 15,544 14,573 13,917 18,266 18,266 3,381 4,267 4,267
Gross profit......... 11,767 12,224 12,615 16,413 16,413 3,079 4,100 4,100
Marketing,
administration and
research costs........ 7,688 8,106 8,068 10, 890 10,890 2,017 2,768 2,768
Amortization of
goodwill.............. 544 539 535 961 961 133 240 240
Operating income..... 3,535 3,579 4,012 4,562 4,562 929 1,092 1,092
Interest and other
debt expense, net..... 536 539 597 2,002 1,348 127 482 318
Earnings before
income taxes........ 2,999 3,040 3,415 2,560 3,214 802 610 774
Provision for income
BAXES. vttt 1,367 1,287 1,414 1,156 1,427 332 284 360
Net earnings......... $ 1,632 $ 1,753 $ 2,001 $ 1,404 $1,787 $ 470 $ 326 $ 414

Basic and diluted
earnings per share.... $ 1.12 $ 1.20 $ 1.38 $ 0.96 $ 1.03 $ 0.32 $ 0.22 $ 0.24

Weighted average

number of shares...... 1,455 1,455 1,455 1,455 1,735 1,455 1,455 1,735
Balance Sheet Data:
Goodwill, net of

accumulated
amortization.......... $16,408 $15,296 $ 31,584 $15,337 $31,423 $31, 423
Total assets........... 31,391 30, 336 52,071 30,456 52,053 52,053

Short-term borrowings,

including current

maturities............ 109 105 859 121 493 493
Long-term notes

payable to Philip

MOrriS.....vvvuvvvunn. 6,234 6,602 21,407 6,488 21,390 12,956
Other long-term debt... 483 433 2,695 425 2,721 2,721
Shareholders' equity... 15,134 13,461 14,048 13,847 14,321 22,755

Cash Flow Data:
Cash provided by (used

in):
Operating
activities.......... $ 2,324 $ 2,693 $ 3,254 $ 548 $ 2
Investing
activities.......... (763) (669) (16,138) (440) (194)
Financing
activities.......... (1,565) (2,031) 12,982 (72) 164
Depreciation and
amortization.......... 1,038 1,030 1,034 $ 1,722 $ 1,722 260 425 $ 425
Capital expenditures... (841) (860) (906) (1,151) (1,151) (120) (174) (174)
Other Data:
Volume (in pounds)..... 12,694 12,817 13,130 17,613 17,613 3,113 4,280 4,280

EBITDA. .t ttvviinnnnnnn, $ 4,573 $ 4,609 $ 5,046 $ 6,284 $ 6,284 $ 1,189 $ 1,517 $ 1,517



Corporate expenses..... 103 135 208 208 208 51 50 50
Operating companies

income:
Reported............. 4,182 4,253 4,755 5,731 5,731 1,113 1,382 1,382
Underlying........... 4,108 4,308 4,620 5,620 5,620 1,142 1,411 1,411

Operating companies

income margin:
Reported............. 15.3% 15.9% 17.9% 16.5% 16.5% 17.2% 16.5% 16.5%
Underlying........... 15.3 16.4 17.4 16.3 16.3 17.6 16.9 16.9



RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks described below and the other
information in this prospectus before deciding to invest in shares of our
Class A common stock. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our
business, financial condition and results of operations could suffer, in which
case the trading price of our Class A common stock could decline.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

We may be unable to maintain our profit margin in the face of a
consolidating retail environment.

Our 15 largest customers together accounted for approximately 40% of our
2000 pro forma revenue. As the retail grocery trade continues to consolidate
and our retail customers grow larger and become more sophisticated, our retail
customers demand lower pricing and increased promotional programs. Further,
these customers are reducing their inventories and increasing their emphasis
on private label products. If we fail to use our scale, marketing expertise,
unique products and category leadership positions to respond to these trends,
our volume growth could slow or we may need to lower our prices or increase
promotional support of our products, any of which would adversely affect our
profitability.

We may be unable to offset the reduction in volume and revenue resulting
from our participation in categories experiencing declining consumption rates.

The coffee, dry packaged desserts, powdered soft drinks, ready-to-eat
cereals and stuffing categories in the United States, which together accounted
for approximately 10% of our 2000 pro forma revenue, have experienced
declining consumption rates since 1997, averaging 1.8% per year. This decline
is due in part to consumer trends toward more convenient foods. Many of our
products require some preparation before they are consumed. Our success
depends in part on our ability to execute our strategy of continuously
improving our portfolio of brands and satisfying consumer preferences for
convenience. If we do not succeed, our volume, revenue and operating companies
income will not increase sufficiently to enable us to achieve our financial
targets.

If we are not an efficient producer, our profitability will suffer as a
result of the highly competitive environment in which we operate.

Our success depends in part on our ability to be an efficient producer in a
highly competitive industry. Our ability to reduce costs further is limited to
the extent efficiencies have already been achieved. Our failure to reduce
costs through productivity gains or by eliminating redundant costs resulting
from acquisitions would weaken our competitive position.

We may be unable to anticipate changes in consumer preferences, which may
result in decreased demand for our products.

Our success depends in part on our ability to anticipate the tastes and
dietary habits of consumers and to offer products that appeal to their
preferences. Consumer preferences change and our failure to anticipate,
identify or react to these changes could result in reduced demand for our
products, which would in turn cause our volume, revenue and operating
companies income to suffer.

We may be unable to add products that are in faster growing and more
profitable categories.

The food industry's growth potential is constrained by population growth,
which has been limited to an annual average increase of 1.1% in North America
and 1.3% globally since 1996. Our success depends in part on our ability to
grow our business faster than populations are growing in the markets that we
serve. One way to achieve that growth is to enhance our portfolio by adding
products that are in faster growing and more profitable categories. If we do
not succeed in making these enhancements, our volume growth may slow, which
would adversely affect our profitability.



We have only recently acquired Nabisco and may not be able to successfully
integrate its operations and achieve our anticipated cost synergies and new
product opportunities.

Although Kraft and Nabisco have each operated separately for many years,
Kraft only recently began to operate the businesses as a combined entity. There
can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully integrate our business
with Nabisco in order to achieve anticipated cost synergies. Our failure to
successfully integrate could have a material adverse effect on our operating
companies income.

A strengthening United States dollar reduces our reported results of
operations from our international business.

In 2000, we derived approximately 32% of our pro forma revenue from sales in
foreign currencies. In our combined financial statements, we translate local
currency financial results into United States dollars based on average exchange
rates prevailing during a reporting period. During times of a strengthening
United States dollar, our reported international revenue and earnings will be
reduced because the local currency will translate into fewer United States
dollars.

We are major purchasers of many commodities that we use for raw materials
and packaging, and price changes for the commodities we depend on may adversely
affect our profitability.

The raw materials used in our business are largely commodities that
experience price volatility caused by external conditions, commodity market
fluctuations, currency fluctuations and changes in governmental agricultural
programs. Commodity price changes may result in unexpected increases in raw
material and packaging costs, and we may be unable to increase our prices to
offset these increased costs without suffering reduced volume, revenue and
operating companies income. We do not fully hedge against changes in commodity
prices and our hedging procedures may not work as planned.

We may be unable to pass on increased costs we incur due to changes in laws
and regulations without incurring volume loss as a result of our higher prices.

Various governments throughout the world are considering regulatory
proposals relating to genetically modified organisms or ingredients, food
safety and market and environmental regulation which, if adopted, would
increase our costs. If any of these or other proposals are enacted, we may
experience a disruption in supply and we may be unable to pass on the cost
increases to our customers without incurring volume loss as a result of our
higher prices.

Economic downturns could cause consumers to shift their food purchases from
our higher priced premium products to lower priced items.

The willingness of consumers to purchase premium branded food and beverage
products depends in part on local economic conditions. In periods of economic
uncertainty, consumers tend to purchase more private label or other economy
brands and our volume could suffer accordingly.

Concerns with the safety and quality of food products could cause consumers
to avoid our products.

We could be adversely affected if consumers in our principal markets lose
confidence in the safety and quality of certain food products. Adverse
publicity about these types of concerns, like the recent publicity about
genetically modified organisms and "mad cow disease" in Europe, whether or not
valid, may discourage consumers from buying our products or cause production
and delivery disruptions.

If our food products become adulterated or misbranded, we would need to
recall those items and may experience product liability claims if consumers are
injured as a result.

We may need to recall some of our products if they become adulterated or
misbranded. We may also be liable if the consumption of any of our products
causes injury. A widespread product recall or a significant product liability
judgment against us could cause products to be unavailable for a period of time
and a loss of consumer confidence in our food products and could have a
material adverse effect on our business.
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We could be liable for income taxes owed by the consolidated group of
Nabisco's former parent.

Before we acquired Nabisco, it was a member of the consolidated group of
Nabisco Group Holdings Corp. Each member of that consolidated group is jointly
and severally liable for the federal income tax liability of each other member
of the group. Consequently, Nabisco could be liable in the event any such
liability is incurred, and not discharged, by any other member of the Nabisco
Group Holdings Corp. consolidated group. Disputes or assessments could arise
during future audits by the Internal Revenue Service in amounts that we cannot
quantify.

Risks Related to Our Relationship with Philip Morris

Because Philip Morris controls substantially all the voting power of our
common stock, investors will not be able to affect the outcome of any
shareholder vote.

Following this offering, Philip Morris will own 49.5% of our outstanding
Class A common stock, or 47.2% if the underwriters exercise their over-
allotment option in full, and 100% of our outstanding Class B common stock. Our
Class A common stock has one vote per share while our Class B common stock has
ten votes per share. As a result, Philip Morris after this offering will
control 97.7% of the combined voting power of all of our outstanding common
stock, or 97.5% if the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option in
full. For as long as Philip Morris continues to own shares of common stock
representing more than 50% of the combined voting power of our common stock, it
will be able to direct the election of all of the members of our board of
directors and determine the outcome of all matters submitted to a vote of our
shareholders, including matters involving mergers or other business
combinations, the acquisition or disposition of assets, the incurrence of
indebtedness, the issuance of any additional shares of common stock or other
equity securities and the payment of dividends on common stock. Philip Morris
will also have the power to prevent or cause a change in control, and could
take other actions that might be favorable to Philip Morris but not to Kraft.

Because Philip Morris will control us, conflicts of interest between Philip
Morris and us could be resolved in a manner unfavorable to us.

Various conflicts of interest between Kraft and Philip Morris could arise
including, but not limited to, the following areas:

Cross Directorships and Stock Ownership. Ownership interests of directors or
officers of Kraft in the common stock of Philip Morris or service as a director
or officer of both Kraft and Philip Morris could create or appear to create
potential conflicts of interest when directors and officers are faced with
decisions that could have different implications for the two companies. For
example, these decisions could relate to:

the nature, quality and cost of services rendered to us by Philip
Morris;

disagreement over the desirability of a potential acquisition
opportunity;

employee retention or recruiting;
the timing of repayments of our indebtedness to Philip Morris; or
our dividend policy.

Control of Tax Decisions. Under our tax-sharing agreement with Philip
Morris, Philip Morris has sole authority to respond to and conduct all income
tax proceedings, including tax audits, relating to Kraft, to file all income
tax returns on behalf of Kraft, and to determine the amount of Kraft's
liability to, or entitlement to payment from, Philip Morris under the tax-
sharing agreement. This arrangement may result in conflicts of interest between
Kraft and Philip Morris. For example, under the tax-sharing agreement, Philip
Morris may choose to contest, compromise or settle any adjustment or deficiency
proposed by the relevant taxing authority in a manner that may be beneficial to
Philip Morris and detrimental to Kraft.



We could be liable for income taxes owed by Philip Morris.

Each member of the Philip Morris consolidated group, which includes Philip
Morris, our company, and Philip Morris' other subsidiaries, is jointly and
severally liable for the federal income tax liability of each other member of
the consolidated group. Consequently, we could be liable in the event any such
liability is incurred, and not discharged, by any other member of the Philip
Morris consolidated group. Disputes or assessments could arise during future
audits by the Internal Revenue Service in amounts that we cannot quantify.

Future sales or distributions of our shares by Philip Morris could depress
the market price for shares of our Class A common stock.

After completion of this offering, Philip Morris may sell all or part of the
shares of our common stock that it owns or distribute those shares to its
shareholders. Sales or distributions by Philip Morris of substantial amounts of
our common stock in the public market or to its shareholders could adversely
affect prevailing market prices for our Class A common stock. Philip Morris has
advised us that it intends to continue to hold all of our common stock that it
owns following this offering, other than shares of our Class A common stock
subject to stock options granted by Philip Morris to its employees. However,
Philip Morris is not subject to any contractual obligation to maintain its
ownership position in our shares, except that it has agreed not to sell or
otherwise dispose of any of our shares of common stock for a period of 180 days
after the date of this prospectus without the prior written consent of the
underwriters. Consequently, we cannot assure you that Philip Morris will
maintain its ownership of our common stock after the 180 day period following
this offering.

Investor perception that Philip Morris may be required to sell shares of our
common stock owned by it to satisfy liabilities related to tobacco litigation
may depress the price of our shares.

Our shares could be discounted in the marketplace because of investor
concern that our principal shareholder, Philip Morris, may face significant
liabilities relating to tobacco litigation. See "Relationship with Philip
Morris--Litigation Against Philip Morris" on page 91.

Stock Market Risk

The market price of our Class A common stock may be volatile, which could
cause the value of your investment to decline.

Securities markets worldwide experience significant price and volume
fluctuations. This market volatility, as well as general economic, market or
political conditions, could reduce the market price of our Class A common stock
in spite of our operating performance. In addition, our operating results could
be below the expectations of public market analysts and investors, and in
response, the market price of our Class A common stock could decrease
significantly. You may be unable to resell your shares of our Class A common
stock at or above the initial public offering price.

Some shares in this offering may have been offered in violation of the
Securities Act of 1933, which could give certain purchasers of these shares the
right to seek refunds or damages.

Prior to the effectiveness of the registration statement covering the shares
of our Class A common stock being sold in this offering, some of the
underwriters of this offering provided written copies of a "pre-marketing
feedback" form to certain potential purchasers of our Class A common stock. The
feedback form was for internal use only and was designed to elicit orally
certain information from designated accounts as part of designing strategy in
connection with this offering. This form may constitute a prospectus that does
not meet the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933. We urge all persons to
read and base their investment decision only on the preliminary prospectus,
dated May 21, 2001, and the final prospectus dated the date hereof.

If the distribution of this form by the underwriters did constitute a
violation of the Securities Act of 1933, persons who received this form,
directly or indirectly, and who purchased our Class A common stock in this
offering may have the right, for a period of one year from the date of the
violation, to obtain recovery of the consideration paid in connection with
their purchase of our Class A common stock or, if they had already sold the
stock, attempt to recover losses resulting from their purchase of our Class A
common stock. We do not believe that any attempts to rescind these purchases or
to recover these losses will have a material adverse effect on our financial
position.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the matters discussed under the captions "Prospectus Summary," "Risk
Factors," "Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information," "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,"
"Business" and elsewhere in this prospectus include forward-looking statements.
You can identify these forward-looking statements by the use of words like
"strategy," "expects," "plans," "believes," "will," "estimates," "intends,"
"projects," "goals," "targets" and other words of similar meaning. You can also
identify them by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or
current facts. We are identifying below important factors that could cause
actual results and outcomes to differ materially from those contained in any
forward-looking statement. Any such statement is qualified by reference to the
following cautionary statement.

Demand for our products is subject to intense competition, changes in
consumer preferences and local economic conditions. In order to compete
effectively against lower priced products in a consolidating environment at the
retail and manufacturer levels, our results are dependent upon our continued
ability to:

promote our brands successfully;

anticipate and respond to new consumer trends;
develop new products and markets;

broaden our brand portfolio;

improve productivity; and

respond to changing prices for our raw materials.

Our results are also dependent upon our ability to successfully integrate
and derive cost savings from the integration of Nabisco's operations with ours.
In addition, we are subject to the effects of foreign economies and currency
movements. Developments in any of these areas could cause our results to differ
materially from results that have been or may be projected.

We caution you that the above list of important factors is not exclusive,
and other factors are discussed in more detail under "Risk Factors" in this
prospectus. These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this
prospectus.

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

Trademarks and servicemarks in this prospectus appear in bold italic type
and are the property of or licensed by our subsidiaries.

In this prospectus, we rely on and refer to statistics regarding the food
industry. Where specified, these statistics reflect our own internal estimates.
Otherwise, we obtained these statistics from various third party sources that
we believe are reliable, but we have not independently verified the statistics.
Unless otherwise specified, information concerning category shares of our
brands and category and market size has been obtained from A.C. Nielsen for
Kraft brands, other than Nabisco brands, sold in the United States and from
Information Resources Inc. for Nabisco brands sold in the United States. Unless
otherwise specified, information concerning category shares of our brands
outside of the United States and global data have been obtained from
A.C. Nielsen or Euromonitor International. Information concerning international
category and market size has been obtained from A.C. Nielsen or Euromonitor
International. Unless otherwise specified, all share information is based on
dollar shares, pounds or equivalent units as indicated and is for the year 2000
or for the year 1999 if 2000 data are unavailable.

Kraft Foods Inc. is a holding company incorporated in Virginia on December
7, 2000. Its two principal subsidiaries are Kraft Foods North America, Inc.,
which conducts our food business in the United States, Canada and Mexico, and
Kraft Foods International, Inc., which conducts our food business in the rest
of the world. In this prospectus, we use the terms "Kraft," "we," "our" and
"us" when we do not need to distinguish among these entities or when any
distinction is clear from the context. Otherwise, we use the terms "Kraft Foods
Inc.," "Kraft Foods North America" and "Kraft Foods International." The term
"Philip Morris" refers to our parent, Philip Morris Companies Inc. The term
"Nabisco" refers to Nabisco Holdings Corp. and its subsidiaries, which we
acquired in December 2000.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Our net proceeds from this offering will be approximately $8.4 billion,
based on the initial public offering price of $31.00 per share and after
deducting the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses payable by
us. If the underwriters' over-allotment option is exercised in full, our net
proceeds will be approximately $9.3 billion.

We will use the net proceeds from this offering to retire a portion of an
$11.0 billion 7.75% note payable to Philip Morris, due in December 2002,
incurred in connection with the Nabisco acquisition.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Our board of directors currently intends to pay regular quarterly dividends
on our Class A common stock and Class B common stock at an initial annual rate
of $0.52 per share. The first dividend is expected to be declared during the
third quarter of 2001 and to be payable in October 2001. The declaration of
dividends is subject to the discretion of our board of directors and will
depend upon various factors, including our net earnings, financial condition,
cash requirements, future prospects and other factors deemed relevant by our
board of directors.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our capitalization as of March 31, 2001. We
have presented our capitalization:

on an actual basis; and

on an as adjusted basis to reflect our receipt and use of the net
proceeds from the sale of 280,000,000 shares of Class A common stock in
this offering at the initial public offering price of $31.00 per share
and the use of the net proceeds to retire a portion of our $11.0 billion
long-term note payable to Philip Morris.

You should read the information set forth below together with "Prospectus
Summary--Summary Historical and Pro Forma Combined Financial and Other Data,"
"Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information," "Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," the Kraft
combined financial statements, the Nabisco consolidated financial statements,
and the accompanying introductions and notes to those statements included
elsewhere in this prospectus.

As of March 31,
2001
As
Actual  Adjusted

Short-term borrowings, including current maturities.......... $ 493 % 493
Short-term obligation payable to Philip Morris............... 1,616 1,616
Long-term notes payable to Philip Morris..............covvuun 21,390 12,956
Other long-term debt. ... ... it i e 2,721 2,721

Total debt. .. i e s 26,220 17,786

Shareholders' equity:
Preferred stock, no par value, 500,000,000 shares
authorized; none issued and outstanding...................
Class A common stock, no par value, 3,000,000,000 shares
authorized; 275,000,000 shares issued and outstanding,
actual; and 555,000,000 shares issued and outstanding, as
AdJUSTEA. . it i e e
Class B common stock, no par value, 2,000,000,000 shares
authorized; 1,180,000,000 shares issued and outstanding,
actual and as adjusted.........ccuiiiiii i i s

Additional paid-in capital..........vuiiinninnnnnnnnnns 15,230 23,664
Earnings reinvested in the business.................. .. ..., 1,318 1,318
Accumulated other comprehensive losses (primarily currency
translation adjustments).........coui i (2,227) (2,227)
Total shareholders' equity..........coiiiiiiniiiiin s 14,321 22,755
Total capitalization............oiiiiiiiii i $40,541 $40,541

The number of shares of our Class A common stock to be outstanding after
this offering excludes:

28,000,000 shares issuable upon exercise of the underwriters' over-
allotment option;

21,322,596 shares issuable upon exercise of employee stock options to be
granted by us concurrently with this offering at an option price equal
to the initial public offering price on the cover page of this
prospectus; and

54,612,904 additional shares available for future issuance under our
stock option and incentive plans.

See "Option Grants and Sales to Employees."
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DILUTION

Our total liabilities exceeded our total tangible assets at March 31, 2001,
by approximately $17.1 billion, or $11.75 per share of common stock. Our net
tangible book value per share represents:

our total assets less intangible assets;
reduced by our total liabilities; and
divided by the number of shares of our common stock outstanding.

Dilution in net tangible book value per share represents the difference between
the amount per share paid by purchasers of our Class A common stock in this
offering and the net tangible book value per share of our common stock
immediately following this offering.

After giving effect to:

the sale by us of 280,000,000 shares of our Class A common stock in this
offering at the initial public offering price of $31.00 per share; and

the receipt and application of the proceeds after deducting the
underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses;

our adjusted net tangible book value as of March 31, 2001, would have been
approximately ($8.7) billion, or ($5.00) per share. This represents an
immediate increase in net tangible book value of $6.75 per share to Philip
Morris, our sole shareholder. This also represents an immediate dilution of
$36.00 per share to new investors purchasing shares of our Class A common stock
in this offering. The following table illustrates this per share dilution:

Initial public offering price per Class A share................ $31.00
Net tangible book value per share before this offering....... ($11.75)
Increase per share attributable to investors in this

To ) = a8 o 6.75

Adjusted net tangible book value per share after this

Of e ANg . . i e (5.00)
Dilution per share to new investors.............iiiiiiinnrnnn $36.00

These calculations do not give effect to 28,000,000 shares of Class A common
stock that we will issue if the underwriters exercise their over-allotment
option in full.

Assuming this offering had occurred on March 31, 2001, the following table
summarizes the differences between the total consideration paid, or to be paid,
and the average price per share paid, or to be paid, by our current shareholder
and the investors in this offering with respect to the number of shares of
Class A common stock purchased from us:

Shares
Purchased Total Consideration
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Average Price
Number Percent Amount Percent Per Share

Current shareholder............... 1,455 83.9% $14,321 62.3% $ 9.84
Investors in this offering........ 280 16.1 8,680 37.7 31.00
Total........oiiiii i 1,735 100.0% $23,001 100.0%

The table above takes into account our outstanding Class B common stock and
does not take into account any shares underlying stock options granted to
officers or employees.
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PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Introduction

On December 11, 2000, we acquired all of the outstanding shares of Nabisco
for $55 per share in cash. The purchase of the outstanding shares, retirement
of employee stock options and other payments totaled approximately $15.2
billion. In addition, the acquisition included the assumption of approximately
$4.0 billion of existing Nabisco debt. We financed the acquisition by issuing
two long-term notes payable to Philip Morris totaling $15.0 billion and by
using short-term intercompany borrowings of $255 million.

We have accounted for the Nabisco acquisition as a purchase. Nabisco's
balance sheet has been consolidated with our balance sheet as of December 31,
2000; however, Nabisco's earnings from December 11, 2000 through December 31,
2000, have not been included in our combined operating results because the
amounts were insignificant. Our interest cost of $65 million associated with
acquiring Nabisco has been included in interest and other debt expense, net, in
our combined statement of earnings for the year ended December 31, 2000.

We have based the allocation of excess purchase price on preliminary
estimates and assumptions. This allocation is subject to revision when
appraisals and integration plans have been finalized. Accordingly, revisions to
the allocation, which may be significant, will be reported in a future period
as increases or decreases to amounts reported as goodwill, other intangible
assets, amortization of goodwill and income taxes.

We are also evaluating plans to close or sell a number of Nabisco
facilities, pending the completion of logistical studies. We estimate that
these actions could result in additional severance and other exit liabilities
(and a corresponding increase to excess purchase price) of $500 million to $600
million. These amounts will be recorded on Kraft's combined balance sheet as
adjustments to excess purchase price when plans have been finalized and
announced to employees. The increase to excess purchase price would increase
our annual amortization of goodwill by $12 million to $15 million, which has
not been reflected in our pro forma condensed combined statement of earnings.

Our pro forma condensed combined statement of earnings presents:

our pro forma results of operations for the year ended December 31,
2000, as if the Nabisco acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2000; and

our pro forma as adjusted results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2000, as if this offering had been completed on January 1,
2000, at the initial public offering price of $31.00 per share and
assuming the underwriters do not exercise their over-allotment option,
with the net proceeds being used to retire a portion of our $11.0
billion long-term note payable to Philip Morris.

The integration of Nabisco into our operations may result in the sale or
closure of a number of our existing facilities. We estimate that these actions
could result in charges of $200 million to $300 million, which will be recorded
as expense in our combined statement of earnings in the period during which our
plans are finalized and announced. Our pro forma condensed combined statement
of earnings does not give effect to any synergies expected to result from the
merger of Nabisco's operations with ours.

Our pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of what actually would
have occurred if the acquisition had been consummated, and this offering had
been completed, on January 1, 2000, nor are they necessarily indicative of our
future operating results.

Our pro forma condensed combined statement of earnings should be read in
conjunction with the Kraft combined financial statements and the Nabisco
consolidated financial statements and their accompanying notes included
elsewhere in this prospectus.
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PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2000

Operating revenue.......
Cost of sales...........

Gross profit..........
Marketing,
administration and
research costs.........
Amortization of
goodwill...............

Operating income......
Interest and other debt
expense, net...........

Earnings before income
taxes. ... .o
Provision for income

Net earnings..........

Per share data:
Basic earnings per
share................

Diluted earnings per
share................

Basic weighted average
number of shares
(millions)...........

Diluted weighted
average number of
shares (millions)....

(Unaudited)

Historical

Kraft

Sales of

Acquisition

Nabisco(a) Businesses(b) Adjustments

(in millions of dollars, except per share data)

$26,532  $8,888 $ (741) $
13,917 4,764 (439) 24 (c)
12,615 4,124 (302) (24)
8,068 3,229 (157) (250)(d)
535 244 (5) 187 (e)
4,012 651 (140) 39
597 304 (1) 1,102 (f)
3,415 347 (139) (1,063)
1,414 192 (49) (401)(9)
$ 2,001 $ 155 $  (90) $ (662)
$ 1.38
$ 1.38
1,455
1,455

See introduction and accompanying notes.
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Adjustments Pro Forma
For This As

Pro Forma Offering Adjusted
$34,679 $ $34,679
18, 266 18,266
16,413 16,413
10,890 10,890
961 961
4,562 4,562
2,002 (654)(h) 1,348
2,560 654 3,214
1,156 271 (i) 1,427

$ 1,404 $ 383 $ 1,787
$ 0.96 $ 1.03
$ 0.96 $ 1.03
1, 455 280 (h) 1,735
1, 455 280 (h) 1,735




NOTES TO PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
(Unaudited)
(a) The historical Nabisco column represents:

the unaudited results of Nabisco on an historical basis for the
period from January 1, 2000 through December 11, 2000; and

Nabisco's results, including the amortization of goodwill and other
adjustments resulting from the Nabisco acquisition on December 11,
2000, for the period from December 12, 2000 through December 31,
2000.

The following is a summary of the estimated pro forma adjustments, based
upon available information and upon certain assumptions that management
believes are reasonable, that are reflected in our pro forma condensed combined
statement of earnings:

(b) In order to address concerns raised by United States trade regulation
authorities, Nabisco sold its domestic dry packaged desserts and baking powder
businesses, as well as its intense mints and gum businesses in December 2000.
The businesses sold by Nabisco are not included in our historical combined
balance sheet as of December 31, 2000. In addition, we have announced plans to
sell Nabisco's Canadian grocery business as well as a number of additional
Nabisco businesses that do not fit strategically with our businesses. The
businesses that we plan to sell are included in our historical combined balance
sheet at December 31, 2000 within the caption "Assets held for sale." Our 2000
pro forma condensed combined statement of earnings has been adjusted to
eliminate the operating results of the businesses sold by Nabisco and to be
sold by us, as follows:

(in millions)

Net earnings of businesses sold by Nabisco................... $61
Net earnings of businesses to be sold by us.................. 29
L0 = $90

(c) Represents the following adjustments:

(in millions)

Charge to reflect the cost of conforming Nabisco's

employee benefit plans.........c.ciiiiiiini it $ 8
Adjustment to record Nabisco's inventory on a last-in,

First-out basisS. .. .ot 16

Total. .o e s $24

(d) Represents the following adjustments:

(in millions)

Reversal of Nabisco's non-recurring charge for expenses

associated with the acquisition of Nabisco (financial,

legal and advisor fees and payments to retire employee

stock options) included in earnings for the year ended

December 31, 2000. .. .. ...t $(127)
Elimination of Nabisco's loss on businesses sold in order to

address concerns raised by United States trade regulation

authorities in connection with the Nabisco acquisition..... (139)
Charge to reflect the cost of conforming Nabisco's employee
benefit plans. . ... .. s 16
T AL, o e e e $(250)

(e) Represents amortization of acquisition goodwill over 40 years by the
straight-line method, net of the reversal of Nabisco's amortization of pre-
acquisition goodwill. The allocation of excess purchase price is based upon
preliminary estimates and assumptions and is subject to revision when



appraisals and integration plans have been finalized. Accordingly, revisions to
the allocation, which may be significant, will be reported in a future period
as increases or decreases to amounts reported as goodwill, other intangible
assets, amortization of goodwill and income taxes.

17



We are also evaluating plans to close or sell a number of Nabisco
facilities, pending the completion of logistical studies. We estimate that
these actions could result in additional severance and other exit liabilities
(and a corresponding increase to excess purchase price) of $500 million to $600
million. These amounts will be recorded on our combined balance sheet as
adjustments to excess purchase price when plans have been finalized and
announced to employees. The increase to excess purchase price would increase
our annual amortization of goodwill by $12 million to $15 million which has not
been reflected in our pro forma condensed combined statement of earnings.

(f) Represents interest expense to finance the Nabisco acquisition. Interest
expense has been computed as follows:

(in millions)

Fixed rate note payable to Philip Morris--$11.0 billion at

7.75%, due December 2002......... .. i $ 853
Fixed rate note payable to Philip Morris--$4.0 billion at

7.40%, due December 2002......... .. i 296
Short-term intercompany borrowings from Philip Morris--$255

million at 7.24%. ... ..ot e s 18

Adjustment for interest expense relating to debt incurred to
finance the acquisition recorded in our combined statement
of earnings for the year ended December 31, 2000........... (65)

(g) Recognition of income tax effects at a rate of 41.4%, excluding the
impact of the amortization of goodwill, which is not deductible for income tax
purposes, net of income taxes of approximately $75 million previously recorded
by Nabisco on the non-recurring adjustments included in item (d) above.

(h) Adjustments to give effect to:

the receipt as of January 1, 2000, of the net proceeds of this
offering of approximately $8.4 billion, after deduction of the
underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses aggregating to
$246 million; and

the reduction of interest expense for the year ended December 31,
2000, to reflect the retirement of a portion of our $11.0 billion
long-term note payable to Philip Morris with the net proceeds of
this offering.

The adjustments assume the underwriters do not exercise their over-allotment
option. See "Use of Proceeds" and "Capitalization."

(i) Recognition of income tax effects at a rate of 41.4%.
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SELECTED HISTORICAL COMBINED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA
Introduction

The following table presents our selected historical combined financial and
other data and should be read along with "Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," the Kraft combined financial
statements, and the accompanying notes to those statements included in this
prospectus. The financial information as of December 31, 1999 and 2000, and for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, has been derived
from the audited Kraft combined financial statements included in this
prospectus. The financial information as of December 31, 1996, 1997 and 1998,
and for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 1997, has been
derived from Kraft's unaudited financial information. The financial information
as of and for the quarters ended March 31, 2000 and 2001, has been derived from
the unaudited Kraft condensed combined financial statements. The unaudited
financial information includes all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring
accruals, which we consider necessary for a fair presentation of our results of
operations for these periods.

We are currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of Philip Morris. In
contemplation of this offering, Philip Morris transferred its indirectly owned
Latin American food subsidiaries to us. The combined financial data in this
prospectus give retroactive effect to the contribution of these Latin American
businesses as if the transfer had occurred on January 1, 1996.

On December 11, 2000, we acquired Nabisco. We have accounted for the Nabisco
acquisition as a purchase. Nabisco's balance sheet has been consolidated with
our balance sheet as of December 31, 2000; however, Nabisco's earnings from
December 11, 2000, through December 31, 2000, have not been included in our
combined operating results because the amounts were insignificant. Our interest
cost of $65 million associated with acquiring Nabisco has been included in
interest and other debt expense, net, in our combined statement of earnings for
the year ended December 31, 2000. Nabisco's earnings have been included in our
combined operating results for the first quarter of 2001.

We define EBITDA as earnings before interest and other debt expense, net;
provision for income taxes; depreciation; and amortization. We believe that
EBITDA is a measure commonly used by analysts and investors. Accordingly, we
have disclosed this information to permit a more complete analysis of our
operating performance. EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or as a
substitute for net earnings or other results of operations data or cash flow
data prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States as a measure of our profitability or liquidity. EBITDA, as we
calculate it, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by
other companies.

We define operating companies income as operating income before amortization
of goodwill and corporate expenses. We use this measure to report our segment
profitability under accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.

We also evaluate our operating results and the performance of our businesses
by reviewing underlying results, including underlying operating revenue,
underlying operating companies income and underlying operating companies income
margin. Underlying results reflect the results of our business operations,
excluding significant one-time items for employee separation programs, write-
downs of property, plant and equipment, estimated sales made in advance of the
century date change and gains (losses) on sales of businesses. Underlying
results also exclude the operating results of businesses that have been sold.
Accordingly, we have disclosed underlying results to permit a more complete
analysis of our operating performance. Underlying operating companies income
should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for net earnings or
other results of operations data prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

We calculate operating companies income margin by dividing operating
companies income by operating revenue. We calculate underlying operating
companies income margin by dividing underlying operating companies income by
underlying operating revenue.
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SELECTED HISTORICAL COMBINED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA

First Quarter Ended

Year Ended December 31, March 31,
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2000 2001
(in millions, except per share data)
Statement of Earnings
Data:
Operating revenue...... $27,950 $27,690 $27,311 $26,797 $ 26,532 $ 6,460 $ 8,367
Cost of sales.......... 16,387 15,978 15,544 14,573 13,917 3,381 4,267
Gross profit......... 11,563 11,712 11,767 12,224 12,615 3,079 4,100
Marketing,
administration and
research costs........ 7,729 7,601 7,688 8,106 8,068 2,017 2,768
Amortization of
goodwill.............. 569 552 544 539 535 133 240
Operating income..... 3,265 3,559 3,535 3,579 4,012 929 1,092
Interest and other
debt expense, net..... 509 476 536 539 597 127 482
Earnings before
income taxes........ 2,756 3,083 2,999 3,040 3,415 802 610
Provision for income
taxes. ... i 1,289 1,291 1,367 1,287 1,414 332 284
Net earnings......... $ 1,467 $ 1,792 $ 1,632 $ 1,753 $ 2,001 $ 470 $ 326
Basic and diluted
earnings per share..... $ 1.01 $ 1.23 $ 1.12 $ 1.20 $ 1.38 $ 0.32 % 0.22
Weighted average number
of shares.............. 1,455 1,455 1,455 1,455 1,455 1,455 1,455
Balance Sheet Data:
Goodwill, net of
accumulated
amortization.......... $18,114 $16,843 $16,408 $15,296 $ 31,584 $ 15,337 $ 31,423
Total assets........... 33,366 31,257 31,391 30,336 52,071 30,456 52,053
Short-term borrowings,
including current
maturities............ 152 168 109 105 859 121 493
Long-term notes
payable to Philip
MOrris......vvvunnnnnn 5,000 5,000 6,234 6,602 21,407 6,488 21,390
Other long-term debt... 634 531 483 433 2,695 425 2,721
Shareholders' equity... 17,530 15,761 15,134 13,461 14,048 13,847 14,321
Cash Flow Data:
Cash provided by (used
in):
Operating
activities.......... $ 2,341 $ 1,940 $ 2,324 $ 2,693 $ 3,254 $ 548 $ 2
Investing
activities.......... (485) 781 (763) (669) (16,138) (440) (194)
Financing
activities.......... (1,924) (2,699) (1,565) (2,031) 12,982 (72) 164
Depreciation and
amortization.......... 1,115 1,064 1,038 1,030 1,034 260 425
Capital expenditures... (812) (737) (841) (860) (906) (120) (174)
Other Data:
Volume (in pounds)..... 12,913 12,767 12,694 12,817 13,130 3,113 4,280
EBITDA. . ' vvriiinnnnnn. $ 4,380 $ 4,623 $ 4,573 $ 4,609 $ 5,046 $ 1,189 $ 1,517
Corporate expenses..... 97 88 103 135 208 51 50
Operating companies
income:
Reported............. 3,931 4,199 4,182 4,253 4,755 1,113 1,382
Underlying........... 3,596 3,911 4,108 4,308 4,620 1,142 1,411
Operating companies
income margin:
Reported............. 14.1% 15.2% 15.3% 15.9% 17.9% 17.2% 16.5%
Underlying........... 13.8 14.7 15.3 16.4 17.4 17.6 16.9
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion together with the "Pro Forma
Condensed Combined Financial Information" and the accompanying introduction and
notes, as well as the Kraft combined financial statements, the Nabisco
consolidated financial statements and their accompanying notes, included
elsewhere in this prospectus.

Overview of Our Business
General

We conduct our global business through two units: Kraft Foods North America
and Kraft Foods International. Kraft Foods North America manages its operations
by product category, while Kraft Foods International manages its operations by
geographic region. Kraft Foods North America's segments are Cheese, Meals and
Enhancers; Biscuits, Snacks and Confectionery; Beverages, Desserts and Cereals;
and Oscar Mayer and Pizza. Kraft Foods North America's food service business
within the United States and its businesses in Canada and Mexico are managed
under the Cheese, Meals and Enhancers segment. Kraft Foods International's
segments are Europe, Middle East and Africa; and Latin America and Asia
Pacific.

We manufacture and distribute a diverse and extensive range of products
globally. Our products are sold in over 140 countries. Within many of our
product lines, we hold the number one category share in a substantial number of
our markets. As of March 15, 2001, we had 228 plants, of which 106 were located
in North America.

Our operating revenue and operating companies income are affected by various
factors including volume, price, currency, acquisitions, divestitures and
product mix. Product mix refers to the change in relative percentage of our
volume comprising products with higher margins per pound versus lower margins
per pound. Favorable product mix occurs when our volume includes more products
that generate higher margins and unfavorable product mix occurs when our volume
includes more products that generate lower margins. Our cost of sales consists
of commodity and other materials costs, labor costs and manufacturing costs. We
use a number of commodities in producing our products, principally coffee and
cocoa beans and dairy products. We also use paper and other materials to
package our products. Fluctuation in commodity costs can cause retail price
volatility, intensify price competition and influence consumer and trade buying
patterns.

Our marketing, administration and research costs include the costs of
marketing our products, other general costs not directly related to
manufacturing our products and costs incurred to develop new and innovative
products. The most significant component of our marketing, administration and
research costs is marketing expense, which relates to the advertising and
promotion of our products.

Our businesses are subject to competitive challenges in various product
categories and markets, including trends toward increasing consolidation in the
retail trade and changing consumer preferences. To confront these challenges,
we continue to take steps to build the value of our brands with new products
and marketing initiatives, to enhance our portfolio of food and beverage
businesses and to reduce costs.

Factors Affecting Comparability

Acquisitions, Divestitures and License Agreements. On December 11, 2000, we
acquired all of the outstanding shares of Nabisco for an aggregate cost of
approximately $19.2 billion, including the assumption of approximately $4.0
billion of Nabisco's existing debt. In connection with the acquisition, we
issued long-term notes payable to Philip Morris in an aggregate principal
amount of $15.0 billion and financed the balance of the acquisition through
short-term intercompany borrowings of $255 million. We will use the net
proceeds from this offering to retire a portion of our $11.0 billion long-term
note payable to Philip Morris. We plan to repay the remainder of these notes
from the proceeds of future issuances of debt and internally generated cash
flow.

We accounted for the Nabisco acquisition as a purchase in our combined
financial statements as of December 31, 2000. Nabisco's balance sheet has been
consolidated with our balance sheet as of December 31, 2000. However, Nabisco's
earnings from December 11, 2000 through December 31, 2000, have not been
included in our combined operating results because the amounts were
insignificant. Our interest cost of $65
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million associated with acquiring Nabisco has been included in interest and
other debt expense, net, in our combined statement of earnings for the year
ended December 31, 2000. Nabisco's earnings have been included in our combined
operating results for the first quarter of 2001.

Had the Nabisco acquisition occurred at the beginning of 2000, our 2000 pro
forma combined operating revenue would have been $34.7 billion and our 2000 pro
forma combined operating companies income would have been $5.7 billion. Our pro
forma amounts are not necessarily indicative of what actually would have
occurred if the acquisition had been consummated at the beginning of 2000, nor
are they necessarily indicative of our future operating results.

During 2001, we will finalize the Nabisco acquisition balance sheet,
including the completion of fair value appraisals of Nabisco's assets. During
this process, we will also finalize our plans to integrate the operations of
Nabisco. We anticipate closing or selling a number of Nabisco facilities. We
estimate that costs for these actions will range from $500 million to $600
million. These costs will increase goodwill on our combined balance sheet and
will be recorded as our plans to close facilities are finalized and announced.

The integration of Nabisco's operations may also result in closing or
selling a number of Kraft facilities. We estimate that these actions could
result in charges, which will be reflected in our combined statement of
earnings, in the range of $200 million to $300 million. These charges will be
recorded during the period in which the integration plans have been finalized
and announced. During the first quarter of 2001, we sold a Kraft facility in
North America and recorded a pre-tax loss of $29 million.

We have also purchased and sold smaller businesses and entered into
licensing agreements, including the following:

During the first quarter of 2001, we purchased coffee businesses in
Romania and Morocco. The aggregate purchase price of these businesses
was $33 million. We also announced the purchase of a coffee company in
Bulgaria, pending government approval, for a price of approximately $45
million.

During 2000, we purchased Balance Bar Co., a maker of energy and
nutrition snack products, as well as Boca Burger, Inc., a manufacturer
and marketer of soy-based meat alternatives. The aggregate purchase
price of these businesses was $358 million.

During 2000, we sold a French confectionery business for $251 million,
resulting in a pre-tax gain of $139 million.

In 1998, we entered into a licensing agreement to market, sell and
distribute Starbucks bagged coffee to grocery customers across the
United States.

While these actions are important to the success of our business strategy, the
operating results of these and other smaller acquisitions, licensing agreements
and divestitures have not had a material impact on our combined results of
operations.

Benefit Plans. Our domestic pension plans are currently overfunded, which
means that pension funds exceed our plans' liabilities to their participants.
To the extent that pension fund investments earn more than the cost of
providing benefits to our employees each year, we record income in our combined
statements of earnings in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. However, our health care plans, postemployment
plans and some of our international pension plans are either unfunded or
underfunded and, therefore, generate benefit plan expense in our combined
statements of earnings. The net amount of our benefit plan income and expense
resulted in pre-tax expense of $52 million in 1998 and pre-tax income of $27
million in 1999 and $103 million in 2000. The increases in the net benefit
income in 1999 and 2000 are primarily attributable to our pension fund's
investment performance. However, given recent performance of these investments
and additional benefit expense for Nabisco, we expect the level of net benefit
income to decrease in 2001 by an amount which is not currently determinable.

Foreign Currency. During the first quarter of 2001, changes in currency
exchange rates decreased our operating revenue by $173 million and operating
companies income by $20 million. Changes in currency exchange rates decreased
our operating revenue by $857 million and operating companies income by $91
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million during 2000. During 1999, changes in currency exchange rates decreased
our operating revenue by $335 million and our operating companies income by $36
million. In the first quarter of 2001 and for the full-year 2000, these
decreases were primarily due to the strength of the United States dollar
against Western European currencies, primarily the Euro. In 1999, these
decreases were due to the strength of the United States dollar against Western
European and Latin American currencies. Although we cannot predict future
changes in currency exchange rates, the continued strength of the United States
dollar against Western European currencies, particularly the Euro, if sustained
during the remainder of 2001, would continue to have an adverse effect on our
operating revenue and operating companies income.

Most Western European countries use the Euro as their single currency, while
still continuing to use their own notes and coins for cash transactions.
Beginning in January 2002, new Euro-denominated notes and coins will be issued
and local currencies will be withdrawn from circulation. The Euro conversion
has not had, and we currently anticipate that it will not have, a material
adverse effect on our combined financial condition, operating companies income
or cash flows.

Century Date Change. Our year-end 1999 inventories and trade receivables
increased due to preemptive contingency plans in the event of a century date
change disruption. These increases resulted in a shift of cash outflows to the
fourth quarter of 1999 from the first quarter of 2000, in an amount we have
estimated to be approximately $155 million. In addition, some of our customers
purchased additional products in 1999 in anticipation of potential disruptions
related to the century date change. We estimate that the increased shipments in
the fourth quarter of 1999 resulted in incremental operating revenue of
approximately $97 million and operating companies income of approximately $40
million, and corresponding decreases in operating revenue and operating
companies income in the first quarter of 2000.

53rd Week. Our subsidiaries end their fiscal years on the Saturday closest
to December 31. Accordingly, most years contain 52 weeks of operating results
while every sixth year includes 53 weeks. In 2000, our results include a 53rd
week, which resulted in incremental operating companies income of approximately
$96 million and increased operating cash flows by approximately $86 million.

Trade Inventory Reductions. During 2000, our United States customers reduced
their inventories of our products, primarily powdered soft drinks, cheese,
coffee, cereals and dry packaged desserts. We estimate that these actions
decreased our operating companies income by approximately $117 million in 2000.

Separation Programs. During 1999, we offered voluntary retirement incentive
or separation programs to certain eligible hourly and salaried employees in the
United States. Employees electing to terminate employment under the terms of
these programs were entitled to enhanced retirement or severance benefits.
Approximately 1,100 hourly and salaried employees accepted the benefits offered
by these programs, and as a result we recorded a pre-tax charge of $157 million
during 1999. This charge was included in marketing, administration and research
costs in our combined statement of earnings for 1999. Payments of pension and
postretirement benefits were made in accordance with the terms of the
applicable benefit plans. Severance benefits, which are paid over a period of
time, commenced upon dates of termination, which ranged from April 1999 to
March 2000. The program and related payments were completed during 2000. Salary
and related benefit costs of employees prior to their retirement or termination
date were expensed as incurred.

Energy Costs. During the latter part of 2000 and the first quarter of 2001,
our energy costs increased as a result of higher prices charged for o0il and
natural gas. However, this increase in energy costs did not have a material
adverse effect on our operating companies income.

Environmental Matters. We are subject to laws and regulations relating to
the protection of the environment. On an annual basis, our recurring costs of
ensuring that we comply with environmental laws and regulations for ongoing
operations have not been material to our combined results of operations or cash
flows, and we do not currently expect any material change in the level of our
expenditures during 2001. We are party to a number of proceedings relating to
various environmental matters. We are not currently subject to any mandate or
order, the resolution of which, either individually or in the aggregate, is
reasonably likely to have a material effect on our combined financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.
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Combined Operating Results

Volume (in pounds):
Kraft Foods North America
Cheese, Meals and
Enhancers..............
Biscuits, Snacks and
Confectionery..........
Beverages, Desserts and
Cereals.........covvunnn
Oscar Mayer and Pizza...

Total Kraft Foods North
America........ooiuiunn.

Kraft Foods International
Europe, Middle East and
Africa..........oovvunn.
Latin America and Asia
Pacific.......... ...

Total Kraft Foods
International..........

Total volume..........

Operating revenue:

Kraft Foods North America
Cheese, Meals and
Enhancers..............
Biscuits, Snacks and
Confectionery..........
Beverages, Desserts and
Cereals.........ovvunnn
Oscar Mayer and Pizza...

Total Kraft Foods North
America................

Kraft Foods International
Europe, Middle East and
Africa..........ouuun
Latin America and Asia
Pacific................

Total Kraft Foods
International..........

Total operating
revenue. ..............

Operating companies
income:

Kraft Foods North America
Cheese, Meals and
Enhancers..............
Biscuits, Snacks and
Confectionery..........
Beverages, Desserts and
Cereals.........ovuvunnn
Oscar Mayer and Pizza...

Total Kraft Foods North
America................

Kraft Foods International
Europe, Middle East and
Africa.............o..
Latin America and Asia
Pacific................

Total Kraft Foods
International..........

Total operating

by Segment

First Quarter

Ended
Year Ended December 31, March 31,
Pro Forma
1998 1999 2000 2000 2000 2001
(dollars and pounds in millions)

4,913 4,874 4,820 5,365 1,158 1,308

43 47 54 2,549 12 609
2,705 2,883 3,117 3,197 765 861
1,388 1,433 1,507 1,507 367 383

2,887 2,816 2,829 3,012 634 640
758 764 803 1,983 177 479
3,645 3,580 3,632 4,995 811 1,119
12,694 12,817 13,130 17,613 3,113 4,280
$ 9,322 $ 9,360 $ 9,405 $10,328 $2,234 $2,494
220 265 329 6,037 74 1,440
5,039 5,074 5,266 5,459 1,395 1,464
3,059 3,198 3,461 3,461 831 884

17,640 17,897 18,461 25,285 4,534 6,282
8,307 7,676 6,824 6,995 1,639 1,503
1,364 1,224 1,247 2,399 287 582
9,671 8,900 8,071 9,394 1,926 2,085

$27,311 $26,797 $26,532 $34,679 $6,460 $8,367

$ 1,599 $ 1,658 $ 1,845 $ 2,052 $ 449 $ 491

54 73 100 802 21 165
1,005 1,009 1,090 1,112 311 339
470 450 512 512 132 148
3,128 3,190 3,547 4,478 913 1,143
884 895 1,019 985 170 172
170 168 189 268 30 67
1,054 1,063 1,208 1,253 200 239



companies income......

Operating companies
income margin:

Kraft Foods North America
Cheese, Meals and
Enhancers..............
Biscuits, Snacks and
Confectionery..........
Beverages, Desserts and
Cereals........ovvuunnn
Oscar Mayer and Pizza...
Total Kraft Foods North
America...........uun

Kraft Foods International
Europe, Middle East and
Africa.................
Latin America and Asia
Pacific................
Total Kraft Foods
International..........

Total operating
companies income
margin................

$ 4,182 $ 4,253 $ 4,755

$ 5,731 $1,113 $1,382

17.2% 17.7% 19.6%

24.5 27.5 30.4
19.9 19.9 20.7
15.4 14.1 14.8
17.7 17.8 19.2
10.6 11.7 14.9
12.5 13.7 15.2
10.9 11.9 15.0

15.3% 15.9% 17.9%
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We define operating companies income as operating income before amortization
of goodwill and corporate expenses. We use this measure to review and report
our segment profitability, as presented in the preceding table. We also review,
among other measures, underlying operating results to evaluate the performance
of our business on a comparable basis. Underlying operating results reflect the
results of our business operations, excluding significant one-time items for
employee separation programs, estimated sales made in advance of the century
date change and gains (losses) on sales of businesses. Underlying operating
results also exclude the operating results of businesses that have been sold.
Accordingly, we have disclosed underlying results to permit a more complete
analysis of our operating performance. The following is a reconciliation of
reported operating results to underlying operating results for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, and for the first quarter of
2000 and 2001:

First Quarter
Ended March
Year Ended December 31, 31,

(dollars and pounds in millions)

Reported volume (in pounds).......... 12,694 12,817 13,130 3,113 4,280
Volume of businesses sold.......... (215) (137) (43) (17)
Estimated impact of century date

change.........coiiiiiiiiiiin (55) 55 55

Underlying volume (in pounds)........ 12,479 12,625 13,142 3,151 4,280

Reported operating revenue........... $27,311 $26,797 $26,532 $6,460 $8,367
Operating revenue of businesses

SOLA. et (547) (352) (141) (53)
Estimated impact of century date
change........coiiiiiiiiiiin (97) 97 97
Underlying operating revenue......... $26,764 $26,348 $26,488 $6,504 $8,367

Reported operating companies income.. $ 4,182 $ 4,253 $ 4,755 $1,113 $1,382
Gain on sale of a French
confectionery business............ (139)
Loss on sale of a food factory..... 29
Operating companies income of
businesses sold................... (74) (62) (36) (11)
Estimated impact of century date
change......... .o, (40) 40 40
Separation programs................ 157
Underlying operating companies
B oo )11= P $ 4,108 $ 4,308 $ 4,620 $1,142 $1,411

First Quarter 2001 Compared with First Quarter 2000

Our volume for the first quarter of 2001 increased by 1,167 million pounds,
or 37.5%, over the first quarter of 2000. Excluding the impact of divested
businesses and the estimated shift in volume due to the century date change,
our underlying volume grew 35.8%. The majority of this increase related to the
Nabisco acquisition. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of 2000,
our underlying volume would have increased by 3.3% with increases in all
segments.

Our operating revenue for the first quarter of 2001 increased $1.9 billion,
or 29.5%, from the first quarter of 2000. This increase was due primarily to
the acquisition of Nabisco and the impact of higher volume of $162 million.
This increase was partially offset by unfavorable currency exchange rates of
$173 million. Excluding the effects of divested businesses and the estimated
shift in revenue due to the century date change, our underlying operating
revenue for the first quarter of 2001 increased $1.9 billion, or 28.6%, from
the first quarter of 2000. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of
2000, our underlying operating revenue would have increased 0.4%.

Our operating companies income increased $269 million, or 24.2%, from the
first quarter of 2000. This increase was due primarily to a $229 million
increase attributable to the Nabisco acquisition, a $98 million impact of
volume increases and higher margins of $54 million. This increase was partially
offset by higher
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marketing, administration and research costs of $63 million, unfavorable
product mix of $24 million and unfavorable currency exchange rates of $20
million. Higher margins on our products were primarily the result of lower
commodity-related costs and lower manufacturing costs. Excluding the loss on
the sale of a North American food factory in 2001, the earnings of divested
businesses and the estimated shift in income due to the century date change,
our underlying operating companies income increased $269 million, or 23.6%. If
we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of 2000, our underlying operating
companies income would have increased 6.9%.

Interest and other debt expense, net, increased $355 million in the first
quarter of 2001 from $127 million in the first quarter of 2000. Amortization of
goodwill increased $107 million in the first quarter of 2001 from $133 million
in the first quarter of 2000. These increases were due to our acquisition of
Nabisco.

Our first quarter 2001 net earnings decreased $144 million and our first
quarter 2001 basic and diluted earnings per share each decreased by 31.3%.
These decreases were due primarily to higher levels of goodwill amortization
and interest expense in connection with our acquisition of Nabisco. Excluding
the loss on the sale of a North American food factory in 2001 and the impact of
the estimated shift in income due to the century date change, our first quarter
2001 underlying net earnings of $344 million decreased 30.4% from $494 million
in the first quarter of 2000, and our underlying basic and diluted earnings per
share each decreased 29.4% from $0.34 in the first quarter of 2000 to $0.24 in
the first quarter of 2001. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of
2000, our net earnings would have increased 12.4% and our basic and diluted
earnings per share would have increased 14.3%.

2000 Compared with 1999

Our volume increased by 313 million pounds, or 2.4%, during 2000. Of this
increase, 1.6 percentage points related to the inclusion of 53 weeks in 2000
operating results, partially offset by a 0.9 percentage point decrease related
to trade inventory reductions in the United States. Volume grew in every
segment but Cheese, Meals and Enhancers, in which a decrease in lower-margin
food service products more than offset volume increases in higher margin
products. Excluding the impact of divested businesses and the estimated shift
in volume due to the century date change, our underlying volume grew 4.1%, of
which 1.6 percentage points related to the inclusion of 53 weeks in 2000
operating results, partially offset by a 0.9 percentage point decrease related
to trade inventory reductions in the United States.

Our operating revenue for 2000 decreased $265 million, or 1.0%, from 1999.
This decrease was due primarily to unfavorable currency exchange rates of $857
million, the estimated shift in revenue attributable to the century date change
of $194 million and the impact of divested businesses of $211 million. These
decreases were partially offset by an increase of $774 million attributable to
higher volume, the impact of acquisitions of $148 million and price increases
of $49 million. Excluding the effects of divested businesses and the estimated
shift in revenue due to the century date change, our underlying operating
revenue for 2000 increased $140 million, or 0.5%, from 1999.

Our operating companies income increased $502 million, or 11.8%, from 1999.
This increase was due primarily to a $430 million impact of volume increases,
higher margins of $402 million, the absence of 1999 separation charges of $157
million and the $139 million gain on the sale of the French confectionery
business in 2000. These increases were partially offset by higher marketing
expenses of $366 million, unfavorable currency exchange rates of $91 million,
the shift in income due to the century date change estimated to be $80 million,
unfavorable product mix of $43 million and the impact of divested businesses.
Higher margins on our products were primarily the result of price increases,
coupled with lower cost of sales due to lower commodity-related costs and lower
manufacturing costs. Marketing expense increased in every segment, with the
largest increase in Cheese, Meals and Enhancers. We increased price promotions
on cheese products in 2000 in the United States during a period of intense
competition that resulted from declining cheese commodity costs. Excluding the
gain on sale of the French confectionery business in 2000, the impact of the
1999 separation charges, the estimated shift in income due to the century date
change and the earnings of divested businesses, our underlying operating
companies income increased 7.2% over 1999.
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Interest and other debt expense, net, increased $58 million, or 10.8%, due
primarily to notes issued to Philip Morris in connection with our purchase of
Nabisco.

Our provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 1999 and
2000, reflected effective income tax rates of 42.3% and 41.4%, respectively.
The lower 2000 effective rate resulted primarily from a reduction in state and
local income taxes due to the mix of pre-tax earnings in various states.

Our 2000 net earnings increased by $248 million and our 2000 basic and
diluted earnings per share each increased by 15.0%. Excluding the impact of the
gain on sale of the French confectionery business, separation charges in 1999
and the impact of the estimated shift in income due to the century date change,
our 2000 underlying net earnings of $1.9 billion grew 6.6% over $1.8 billion in
1999, and our underlying basic and diluted earnings per share each grew 7.2%
from $1.25 in 1999 to $1.34 in 2000.

1999 Compared with 1998

Our volume increased 123 million pounds, or 1.0%, over 1998. Increases in
most segments were partially offset by lower shipments in the Cheese, Meals and
Enhancers segment and lower volume in Europe. Excluding divested businesses and
the estimated shift in shipments due to the century date change, our underlying
volume increased 1.2% over 1998.

Our operating revenue for 1999 decreased $514 million, or 1.9%, from 1998.
This decrease was due primarily to unfavorable currency exchange rates of $335
million and lower pricing of $301 million resulting from lower commodity costs.
Partially offsetting these decreases was an estimated shift in revenue of $97
million attributable to the century date change. Excluding the impact of
divested businesses and the estimated shift in revenue due to the century date
change, our underlying operating revenue for 1999 decreased $416 million, or
1.6%, from 1998.

Our operating companies income increased $71 million, or 1.7%, over 1998.
This increase was due primarily to higher margins of $507 million, the impact
of higher volume of $70 million and the estimated shift in income due to the
century date change of $40 million. These increases were partially offset by
$157 million of separation charges in 1999, higher marketing, administration
and research costs of $294 million, unfavorable currency exchange rates of $36
million, unfavorable product mix of $20 million and the impact of divested
businesses of $12 million. Higher margins on our products were the result of
lower cost of sales due to lower commodity-related costs and lower
manufacturing costs, partially offset by lower pricing. Marketing expense
increased in every segment except Latin America and Asia Pacific. Excluding the
impact of the 1999 separation charges, the estimated shift in income due to the
century date change and the earnings of divested businesses, our underlying
operating companies income increased 4.9% over 1998.

Our provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 1998 and
1999, reflected effective income tax rates of 45.6% and 42.3%, respectively.
The lower effective rate for 1999 resulted primarily from a reduction in
foreign income taxes.

Our 1999 net earnings increased by $121 million and our 1999 basic and
diluted earnings per share each increased 7.1%, due primarily to higher
operating companies income. Excluding the impact of the 1999 separation charges
and the estimated shift in income due to the century date change, our 1999
underlying net earnings of $1.8 billion grew 11.7% over $1.6 billion in 1998,
and our underlying basic and diluted earnings per share each increased 11.6%
from $1.12 in 1998 to $1.25 in 1999.
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Operating Results by Business Segment
Kraft Foods North America

The following table is a reconciliation of Kraft Foods North America's
reported operating results to underlying operating results for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, and for the first quarter of
2000 and 2001:

First Quarter Ended
Year Ended December 31, March 31,

(dollars and pounds in millions)

Reported volume (in pounds).... 9,049 9,237 9,498 2,302 3,161
Volume of businesses sold:
Cheese, Meals and
Enhancers................. (14) (13) (5) (4)
Estimated impact of century
date change:
Cheese, Meals and

Enhancers................. (16) 16 16
Biscuits, Snacks and
Confectionery............. (1) 1 1
Beverages, Desserts and
Cereals.........ovvvninnnn (19) 19 19
Oscar Mayer and Pizza...... (5) 5 5
Underlying volume (in pounds).. 9,035 9,183 9,534 2,339 3,161
Reported operating revenue..... $17,640 $17,897 $18,461 $ 4,534 % 6,282

Operating revenue of
businesses sold:
Cheese, Meals and
Enhancers.............vuu. (29) (25) (10) (7)
Estimated impact of century
date change:
Cheese, Meals and

Enhancers................. (34) 34 34
Biscuits, Snacks and
Confectionery............. (3) 3 3
Beverages, Desserts and
Cereals.......ovvvinnnnnn. (22) 22 22
Oscar Mayer and Pizza...... (12) 12 12
Underlying operating revenue... $17,611 $17,801 $18,522 $ 4,598 $ 6,282

Reported operating companies
income. ... .ot $ 3,128 $ 3,190 $ 3,547 $ 913 $ 1,143
Operating companies income of
businesses sold:
Cheese, Meals and
Enhancers................. (7) (8) (4) (3)
Estimated impact of century
date change:
Cheese, Meals and
Enhancers................. (15) 15 15
Biscuits, Snacks and
Confectionery............. (1) 1 1
Beverages, Desserts and
Cereals.......vvviiinnnnn. (7) 7 7
Oscar Mayer and Pizza...... (4) 4 4
Loss on sale of a food
factory:
Cheese, Meals and
Enhancers................. 29
Separation programs:
Cheese, Meals and

Enhancers................. 71
Biscuits, Snacks and
Confectionery............. 2
Beverages, Desserts and
Cereals.......vviiiinnnnn 46
Oscar Mayer and Pizza...... 38

Underlying operating companies
INCOME. v vt e e $ 3,121 $ 3,312 $ 3,570 $ 937 $ 1,172

First Quarter 2001 Compared with First Quarter 2000



Kraft Foods North America's volume for the first quarter of 2001 increased
37.3% over the first quarter of 2000. Excluding the impact of divested
businesses and the estimated shift in volume attributable to the century date
change, our underlying volume increased 35.1%, due primarily to the acquisition
of Nabisco. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of 2000, our
underlying volume would have increased 3.3%.
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Operating revenue increased $1.7 billion, or 38.6%, over the first quarter
of 2000, due primarily to a $1.6 billion increase attributable to the Nabisco
acquisition, the impact of higher volume of $131 million and the estimated
shift in revenue attributable to the century date change of $71 million.
Partially offsetting this increase were unfavorable product mix of $68 million
and unfavorable currency exchange rates of $16 million. Excluding the
estimated shift in revenue attributable to the century date change and the
revenue of divested businesses, our underlying operating revenue increased
36.6%. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of 2000, our
underlying operating revenue would have increased 2.1%.

Operating companies income increased $230 million, or 25.2%, due primarily
to a $211 million increase attributable to the Nabisco acquisition, the impact
of higher volume of $76 million, higher margins of $58 million and the
estimated shift in income attributable to the century date change of $27
million. This increase was partially offset by higher marketing,
administration and research costs of $78 million, the majority of which
related to higher marketing expenses, the loss on the sale of a North American
food factory of $29 million and unfavorable product mix of $24 million. Higher
margins were the result of lower commodity-related and manufacturing costs.
Excluding the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date
change, the loss on the sale of a North American food factory and the income
of divested businesses, our underlying operating companies income increased
25.1% over the first quarter of 2000. If we had owned Nabisco during the first
quarter of 2000, our underlying operating companies income would have
increased 6.5%.

The following discusses operating results within each of Kraft Foods North
America's business segments.

Cheese, Meals and Enhancers. Total Cheese, Meals and Enhancers volume
increased 13.0% over the first quarter of 2000. Excluding the volume of
divested businesses and the estimated shift in volume attributable to the
century date change, our underlying volume increased 11.8%, due primarily to
the acquisition of Nabisco. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter
of 2000, our volume would have increased 1.0%, as higher volume in meals and
enhancers was partially offset by lower cheese and food service volume. In
cheese, volume declined due to lower process cheese shipments and the
discontinuance of some of our lower-margin, non-branded products, partially
offset by higher volume in natural cheese, cream cheese, cottage cheese and
sour cream. Meals volume increased, reflecting higher shipments of dinners and
rice. Enhancers volume increased due to gains in spoonable and pourable salad
dressings and steak sauce.

Operating revenue increased $260 million, or 11.6%, over the first quarter
of 2000. This increase was due primarily to a $221 million increase
attributable to the Nabisco acquisition, the impact of higher volume of $24
million and the estimated shift in revenue attributable to the century date
change of $34 million. This increase was partially offset by unfavorable
currency exchange rates of $16 million. Excluding the estimated shift in
revenue attributable to the century date change and revenue of divested
businesses, our underlying first quarter 2001 operating revenue increased
10.3%. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of 2000, our
underlying operating revenue would have increased 0.8%.

Operating companies income increased $42 million, or 9.4%, over the first
quarter of 2000. This increase was due primarily to a $51 million increase
attributable to the Nabisco acquisition, higher margins of $29 million,
favorable product mix of $20 million, the estimated shift in income
attributable to the century date change of $15 million and the impact of
higher volume. Partially offsetting this increase were higher marketing,
administration and research costs of $49 million and the loss on the sale of a
food factory of $29 million. Higher margins were due to lower commodity-
related and manufacturing costs. Favorable product mix was the result of lower
volume in low-margin food service products and the discontinuance of some of
our lower margin, non-branded cheese products. Excluding the estimated shift
in income attributable to the century date change, the loss on the sale of a
food factory and the income of divested businesses, our underlying first
gquarter 2001 operating companies income of $520 million increased 12.8% over
$461 million in the first quarter of 2000. If we had owned Nabisco during the
first quarter of 2000, our underlying operating companies income would have
increased 3.5%.
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Biscuits, Snacks and Confectionery. Reported and underlying volume of
Biscuits, Snacks and Confectionery both grew more than 100% over the first
quarter of 2000, due primarily to the acquisition of Nabisco. If we had owned
Nabisco during the first quarter of 2000, our underlying volume would have
increased 3.3%, due primarily to new product introductions in biscuits and
confectionery. In salty snacks, volume declined due primarily to lower
shipments of nuts to non-grocery channels.

Reported and underlying operating revenue both increased $1.4 billion, or
more than 100%, over the first quarter of 2000, due primarily to the
acquisition of Nabisco. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of
2000, our underlying operating revenue would have increased 5.3%, due primarily
to new biscuit and confectionery products.

Operating companies income increased $144 million, and underlying operating
companies income increased $143 million, both more than 100%, over the first
quarter of 2000, due primarily to a $155 million increase attributable to the
Nabisco acquisition. Partially offsetting this increase were higher marketing,
administration and research costs of $11 million, the majority of which related
to higher marketing expenses. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter
of 2000, our underlying operating companies income would have increased 21.0%,
due primarily to higher volume from new biscuit and confectionery products and
favorable margins.

Beverages, Desserts and Cereals. Total Beverages, Desserts and Cereals
volume increased 12.5% over the first quarter of 2000. Excluding the estimated
shift in volume attributable to the century date change, our underlying volume
increased 9.8%. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of 2000, our
underlying volume would have increased 7.1% due primarily to volume gains in
beverages and coffee. In beverages, volume increased due primarily to higher
shipments of aseptic juice drinks. Volume in coffee increased due primarily to
increases in Starbucks coffee sold through grocery stores and an increase in
overall coffee consumption. In our desserts business, volume was slightly below
the prior year, as increases in frozen whipped toppings and nutrition and
energy snack bars were more than offset by lower shipments of dry packaged and
refrigerated ready-to-eat desserts. Cereal volume declined, due primarily to
increased competition in the ready-to-eat cereal category.

Operating revenue increased $69 million, or 4.9%, over the first quarter of
2000. This increase was due primarily to the impact of higher volume of $92
million, $41 million attributable to the Nabisco acquisition and $19 million
attributable to the acquisition of Balance Bar Co., as well as the estimated
shift in revenue attributable to the century date change of $22 million.
Partially offsetting this increase were unfavorable product mix of $80 million
and lower pricing of $29 million. Lower pricing was due to coffee price
reductions as the cost for green coffee beans declined. Excluding the estimated
shift in revenue attributable to the century date change, our underlying
operating revenue increased 3.3%. If we had owned Nabisco during the first
quarter of 2000, our underlying operating revenue would have decreased 0.2%.

Operating companies income increased $28 million, or 9.0%, over the first
quarter of 2000. This increase was due primarily to the impact of higher volume
of $60 million, higher margins of $14 million, the effect of the Nabisco
acquisition of $5 million and the estimated shift in income attributable to the
century date change of $7 million. Partially offsetting this increase was
unfavorable product mix of $56 million. The unfavorable product mix was due
primarily to the volume increase in aseptic juice drinks, which generate lower
margins per pound than the aggregate margins per pound of our other beverages,
desserts and cereals products. Excluding the estimated shift in income
attributable to the century date change, our underlying operating companies
income of $339 million for the first quarter of 2001 increased 6.6% over $318
million in the first quarter of 2000. If we had owned Nabisco during the first
quarter of 2000, our underlying operating companies income would have increased
4.3%.

Oscar Mayer and Pizza. Total Oscar Mayer and Pizza volume grew 4.4% from the
first quarter of 2000. Excluding the estimated shift in volume attributable to
the century date change, our underlying volume increased 3.0%, due to volume
gains in both processed meats and pizza. Volume increased in our processed
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meats business due to hot dogs, bacon, luncheon meats, and soy-based meat
alternatives. Lunch combinations volume was down due to the timing of
shipments. Volume in our pizza business increased, driven by new products.

Operating revenue increased $53 million, or 6.4%, over the first quarter of
2000. This increase was due primarily to the impact of higher volume of $17
million, favorable product mix of $13 million, the estimated shift in revenue
attributable to the century date change of $12 million and $7 million from the
acquisition of Boca Burger. Excluding the estimated shift in revenue
attributable to the century date change, our underlying operating revenue
increased 4.9%.

Operating companies income increased $16 million, or 12.1%, from the first
quarter of 2000. This increase was due primarily to higher margins of $15
million, the impact of higher volume of $8 million, favorable product mix of
$11 million and the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date
change of $4 million. Partially offsetting this increase were higher
marketing, administration and research costs of $21 million, the majority of
which related to higher marketing expenses. Higher margins were due primarily
to lower manufacturing costs. Favorable product mix was due primarily to
volume increases in higher margin pizza and processed meat products. Excluding
the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date change, our
underlying operating companies income of $148 million for the first quarter of
2001 increased 8.8% over $136 million in the first quarter of 2000.

2000 Compared with 1999

Kraft Foods North America's volume for 2000 increased 2.8% over 1999.
Excluding the impact of divested businesses and the estimated shift in volume
attributable to the century date change, volume increased 3.8%, of which 1.6
percentage points related to the impact of the 53rd week of shipments,
partially offset by a 1.3 percentage point decrease related to trade inventory
reductions in 2000.

Operating revenue increased $564 million, or 3.2%, over 1999, due primarily
to the $483 million impact of higher volume, the impact of acquisitions of
$148 million and higher pricing of $79 million. Partially offsetting these
increases was the estimated shift in revenue attributable to the century date
change of $142 million.

Operating companies income grew by $357 million, or 11.2%, to $3.5 billion,
due primarily to higher margins of $318 million, driven by higher pricing
coupled with lower commodity-related costs. Also contributing to this increase
was the absence of the 1999 pre-tax charge for separation programs of $157
million and the impact of higher volume of $283 million. Partially offsetting
these increases were higher marketing, administration and research costs of
$310 million, the majority of which related to higher marketing expenses;
unfavorable product mix of $43 million; and the estimated shift in income
attributable to the century date change of $54 million. Our underlying 2000
operating companies income increased 7.8% from 1999.

The following discusses operating results within each of Kraft Foods North
America's business segments.

Cheese, Meals and Enhancers. Total Cheese, Meals and Enhancers volume
decreased 1.1% from 1999 driven by a 7.1% decline in our United States food
service business, which more than offset an increase in our retail businesses.
We recently reached the contractual termination of an exclusivity agreement
with a single food service distributor and are moving to open distribution of
our Kraft branded food service products. This transition resulted in lower
food service volume in 2000. Also contributing to the decrease in food service
volume was the loss of a contract to supply cold cuts and the pruning of low
margin products. Cheese volume increased over 1999 with gains in process,
natural and cream cheese products. Meals volume was lower in 2000, reflecting
lower shipments of Mexican dinners and rice. Enhancers volume decreased
slightly. Volume in Canada grew due to new product introductions. Excluding
the impact of divested businesses and the estimated shift in volume
attributable to the century date change, our underlying 2000 volume decreased
0.3%.
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Operating revenue increased $45 million, or 0.5%, over 1999, due primarily
to favorable product mix of $128 million and favorable currency exchange rates
of $30 million. Partially offsetting these increases were the impact of lower
volume of $29 million, the estimated shift in revenue attributable to the
century date change of $68 million and the impact of divestitures of $15
million.

Operating companies income increased $187 million, or 11.3%, over 1999 due
to higher margins of $254 million, driven by lower commodity-related and
manufacturing costs. Also contributing to this increase was favorable product
mix of $81 million and the absence of the 1999 separation charge of $71
million. Partially offsetting these increases were higher marketing,
administration and research costs of $171 million, primarily from marketing;
the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date change of $30
million; and the impact of lower volume of $14 million. Our marketing expense
increased as we increased price promotions on cheese products during 2000 in
the United States during a period of intense competition that resulted from low
cheese commodity costs. Favorable product mix was the result of lower volume in
low-margin food service products. Excluding the impact of the 1999 separation
charges, the income of divested businesses and the estimated shift in income
attributable to the century date change, our underlying 2000 operating
companies income of $1.9 billion increased 8.8% from $1.7 billion in 1999.

Biscuits, Snacks and Confectionery. Total Biscuits, Snacks and Confectionery
volume grew 14.9% over 1999, reflecting the continued success of two-
compartment snacks and the introduction of new intense mint and chocolate
products.

Operating revenue increased $64 million, or 24.2%, over 1999, due primarily
to the impact of higher volume. Operating companies income increased $27
million, or 37.0%, due primarily to the impact of higher volume of $45 million
and the absence of the 1999 separation charge of $2 million. Partially
offsetting these increases were higher marketing, administration and research
costs of $24 million. Excluding the 1999 separation charges and the estimated
shift in revenue attributable to the century date change, our underlying 2000
operating companies income of $101 million increased 36.5% from $74 million in
1999.

Beverages, Desserts and Cereals. Total Beverages, Desserts and Cereals
volume grew 8.1% from 1999. Beverages volume grew on the strength of aseptic
juice drinks, reflecting new product introductions, and higher coffee shipments
due to growth in Starbucks bagged coffees. Volume also grew in frozen whipped
toppings, due in part to the introduction of new products. Partially offsetting
these increases were declines in ready-to-eat cereals, due to an intensely
competitive environment, and in dry packaged desserts, reflecting lower
promotions. Excluding the estimated shift in volume attributable to the century
date change, our underlying 2000 volume grew 9.5%, of which approximately 0.6
percentage points related to the acquisition of Balance Bar.

Operating revenue increased $192 million, or 3.8%, over 1999, due primarily
to the impact of higher volume of $250 million and $113 million from the
acquisition of Balance Bar. Partially offsetting these increases were
unfavorable product mix of $124 million and the estimated shift in revenue
attributable to the century date change of $44 million.

Operating companies income increased $81 million, or 8.0%, over 1999. This
increase was due primarily to the impact of higher volume of $154 million; the
absence of the 1999 separation charges of $46 million; higher margins of $20
million, due primarily to lower commodity costs; and the acquisition of Balance
Bar. Partially offsetting these increases were unfavorable product mix of $104
million; higher marketing, administration and research costs of $29 million,
primarily from marketing; and the estimated shift in income attributable to the
century date change of $14 million. Our unfavorable product mix was due
primarily to the volume increase in aseptic juice drinks, which generate lower
margins per pound than the aggregate margins per pound of our other beverages,
desserts and cereals products. The increase in marketing expense reflected
introductions of new aseptic juice drink products, partially offset by lower
marketing attributable to powdered soft drinks, dry packaged desserts and
ready-to-eat cereals. Excluding the impact of the 1999 separation charges and
the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date change, our
underlying 2000 operating companies income of $1.1 billion increased 4.7% from
$1.0 billion in 1999.
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Oscar Mayer and Pizza. Total Oscar Mayer and Pizza volume grew 5.2% from
1999. Volume grew in pizza, reflecting the continued success of our rising
crust pizza and new product introductions. Volume growth also reflected the
introduction of Mega Pack Lunchables lunch combinations, the acquisition of
Boca Burger and gains in hot dogs and cold cuts. Excluding the estimated shift
in volume attributable to the century date change, our underlying 2000 volume
increased 5.9%, of which approximately 0.8 percentage points related to the
acquisition of Boca Burger.

Operating revenue increased $263 million, or 8.2%, over 1999, due primarily
to the impact of higher volume of $190 million, higher pricing of $82 million
and $35 million from the acquisition of Boca Burger. This increase in
operating revenue was partially offset by the estimated shift in revenue
attributable to the century date change of $24 million and unfavorable product
mix of $22 million.

Operating companies income increased $62 million, or 13.8%, over 1999. This
increase was due primarily to the impact of higher volume of $98 million,
higher margins of $43 million and the absence of the 1999 separation charge of
$38 million. Partially offsetting these increases were higher marketing,
administration and research costs of $86 million, primarily from marketing;
unfavorable product mix of $20 million; and the estimated shift in income
attributable to the century date change of $8 million. Higher marketing
expense and unfavorable product mix both reflected the effects of new product
introductions during 2000. Excluding the impact of the 1999 separation charges
and the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date change, our
underlying 2000 operating companies income of $516 million increased 6.6% from
$484 million in 1999.

1999 Compared with 1998

Kraft Foods North America's volume increased 2.1% during 1999, of which
approximately 0.5 percentage points related to the estimated shift in volume
attributable to the century date change.

Operating revenue increased $257 million, or 1.5%, over 1998, due primarily
to the impact of higher volume of $93 million, the estimated shift in revenue
attributable to the century date change of $71 million and favorable pricing
of $65 million.

Operating companies income grew $62 million, or 2.0%, over 1998. This
increase was due primarily to higher margins of $428 million, driven by lower
commodity and manufacturing costs; the impact of higher volume of $58 million;
and the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date change of
$27 million. Partially offsetting these increases were higher marketing,
administration and research costs of $247 million, the majority of which
related to higher marketing expenses; separation charges of $157 million; and
unfavorable product mix of $20 million. Marketing expense increased across all
segments, with the largest increase in Cheese, Meals and Enhancers, as we
increased price promotions on cheese products. Excluding the impact of
divested businesses, the 1999 separation charges and the estimated shift in
income attributable to the century date change, our underlying 1999 operating
companies income increased 6.1% over 1998.

The following discusses operating results within each of Kraft Foods North
America's business segments.

Cheese, Meals and Enhancers. Total Cheese, Meals and Enhancers volume
decreased 0.8% from 1998, due primarily to lower food service shipments and
the exit of lower-margin product lines in Canada. Enhancers also contributed
to the volume decline as lower shipments of spoonable dressings more than
offset increases in barbecue sauce. Partially offsetting the overall volume
decline was cheese volume, which increased over 1998 with gains in several
product lines. Meals volume also increased due primarily to the introduction
of new products. Excluding the impact of divested businesses and the estimated
shift in volume attributable to the century date change, underlying 1999
volume decreased 1.1% from 1998.

During 1999, operating revenue increased $38 million, or 0.4%, over 1998,
due primarily to higher pricing of $140 million and the estimated shift in
revenue attributable to the century date change of $34 million. These
increases were partially offset by the impact of lower volume of $131 million.
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Operating companies income increased $59 million, or 3.7%, over 1998. This
increase was due primarily to higher margins of $340 million, driven by higher
pricing coupled with lower commodity and manufacturing costs; the estimated
shift in income attributable to the century date change of $15 million; and
favorable product mix of $38 million. Partially offsetting these increases were
higher marketing, administration and research costs of $179 million, primarily
from marketing; the impact of lower volume of $73 million; and 1999 separation
charges of $71 million. Marketing expense increased due to price promotions on
cheese products and the introduction of new products. Favorable product mix was
the result of lower volume in lower-margin food service products and the
discontinuance of lower-margin product lines in Canada. Excluding the impact of
the 1999 separation charges, the income of divested businesses and the
estimated shift in income attributable to the century date change, underlying
1999 operating companies income of $1.7 billion increased 7.2% over 1998.

Biscuits, Snacks and Confectionery. Total volume grew 9.3% over 1998 on the
continued success of intense mints and two-compartment snacks. Excluding the
estimated shift in volume attributable to the century date change, underlying
1999 volume increased 7.0% over 1998.

During 1999, operating revenue increased $45 million, or 20.5%, over 1998,
due primarily to favorable product mix of $23 million and the impact of higher
volume of $18 million.

Operating companies income increased $19 million, or 35.2%, over 1998, due
primarily to favorable product mix of $19 million and higher volume of $11
million. These increases were partially offset by higher marketing,
administration and research costs. Higher marketing expense and favorable
product mix both reflected growth in our intense mints business. Excluding the
1999 separation charges and the estimated shift in income attributable to the
century date change, underlying 1999 operating companies income of $74 million
increased 37.0% from $54 million in 1998.

Beverages, Desserts and Cereals. Total Beverages, Desserts and Cereals
volume grew 6.6% over 1998. Volume grew in aseptic juice drinks, as well as in
powdered soft drinks, both fueled by new product introductions. Coffee volume
grew on the successful rollout of Starbucks bagged coffee to grocery customers
throughout 1999. Volume also grew in ready-to-eat refrigerated desserts and in
frozen whipped toppings. Partially offsetting these increases were declines in
dry packaged desserts and ready-to-eat cereals, due to intense competition.
Excluding the estimated shift in volume attributable to the century date
change, underlying 1999 volume increased 5.9% over 1998.

During 1999, operating revenue increased $35 million, or 0.7%, due primarily
to the impact of higher volume of $117 million, acquisitions of $91 million and
the estimated shift in revenue attributable to the century date change of $22
million. Partially offsetting these increases were unfavorable mix of $113
million and lower pricing of $81 million.

Operating companies income increased $4 million, or 0.4%, over 1998, due
primarily to the impact of higher volume of $74 million, higher margins of $69
million and the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date
change. Partially offsetting these increases were unfavorable product mix of
$71 million, the 1999 separation charges of $46 million and higher marketing,
administration and research costs. The unfavorable product mix was due
primarily to the volume increase in aseptic juice drinks. Excluding the 1999
separation charges and the estimated shift in income attributable to the
century date change, underlying 1999 operating companies income of $1.0 billion
increased 4.3% from 1998.

Oscar Mayer and Pizza. Total Oscar Mayer and Pizza volume grew 3.2% over
1998. Volume grew in pizza, reflecting the continued success of our rising
crust pizza and new product introductions. Volume also grew in lunch
combinations, bacon and hot dogs. Partially offsetting these increases was a
decline in cold cuts. Excluding the estimated shift in volume attributable to
the century date change, underlying 1999 volume increased 2.9% over 1998.
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During 1999, operating revenue increased $139 million, or 4.5%, over 1998,
due primarily to the impact of higher volume of $89 million, the estimated
shift in revenue attributable to the century date change of $12 million and
favorable product mix of $33 million.

Operating companies income decreased $20 million, or 4.3%, from 1998. This
decrease was due primarily to the 1999 separation charge of $38 million, the
impact of higher marketing, administration and research costs of $30 million,
primarily from marketing, and increased expense related to food safety. These
decreases were partially offset by the impact of higher volume of $46 million
and the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date change of $4
million. The increase in marketing expense was due primarily to the
introduction of new pizza products. Excluding the 1999 separation charges and
the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date change,
underlying 1999 operating companies income of $484 million increased 3.0% over
$470 million in 1998.

Kraft Foods International

The following table is a reconciliation of Kraft Foods International's
reported operating results to underlying operating results for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, and for the first quarter of
2000 and 2001:

First Quarter Ended
Year Ended December 31, March 31,

(dollars and pounds in millions)

Reported volume (in pounds).... 3,645 3,580 3,632 811 1,119
Volume of businesses sold:
Europe, Middle East and

Africa.......ovvviiininnnnn (161) (91) (38) (13)
Latin America and Asia
Pacific........vvviinnnnnn (40) (33)

Estimated impact of century
date change:
Europe, Middle East and

Africa.......cvviivininnnnn (7) 7 7

Latin America and Asia

Pacific.......cvvviinnnnn (7) 7 7
Underlying volume (in pounds).. 3,444 3,442 3,608 812 1,119
Reported operating revenue..... $ 9,671 $ 8,900 $ 8,071 $ 1,926 $ 2,085

Operating revenue of
businesses sold:
Europe, Middle East and

Africa....cvvviviininninn. (461) (294) (131) (46)
Latin America and Asia
Pacific........covviiunnn. (57) (33)

Estimated impact of century
date change:
Europe, Middle East and

Africa.......covviiiinnnn (14) 14 14
Latin America and Asia
Pacific.........covvvunnnn, (12) 12 12
Underlying operating revenue... $ 9,153 $ 8,547 $ 7,966 $ 1,906 $ 2,085

Reported operating companies
income........... ... . i, $ 1,054 $ 1,063 $ 1,208 $ 200 $ 239
Gain on sale of a French
confectionery business:
Europe, Middle East and
Africa..........covviiin (139)
Operating companies income of
businesses sold:
Europe, Middle East and

Africa............ ... (66) (52) (32) (8)
Latin America and Asia
Pacific........... ...t (1) (2)

Estimated impact of century
date change:
Europe, Middle East and

Africa.......cooviiinnnnn (8) 8 8
Latin America and Asia
Pacific..........covvunnn. (5) 5 5

Underlying operating companies
income. . ...t $ 987 $ 996 $ 1,050 $ 205 $ 239
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First Quarter 2001 Compared with First Quarter 2000

Kraft Foods International's volume for the first quarter of 2001 increased
38.0% over the first quarter of 2000. Excluding the impact of divested
businesses and the estimated shift in volume attributable to the century date
change, our underlying volume increased 37.8%, due primarily to the
acquisition of Nabisco. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of
2000, our underlying volume would have increased 3.3%.

Operating revenue increased $159 million, or 8.3%, over the first quarter
of 2000. Excluding the estimated shift in revenue attributable to the century
date change and the revenue of divested businesses, our underlying operating
revenue increased $179 million, or 9.4%, due primarily to a $287 million
increase attributable to the Nabisco acquisition and higher volume of $31
million. This increase was partially offset by unfavorable currency exchange
rates of $157 million. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of
2000, operating revenue would have decreased 4.4% from the comparable 2000
period, due primarily to unfavorable currency exchange rates.

Operating companies income increased $39 million, or 19.5%, from the first
quarter of 2000. Excluding the estimated shift in income related to the
century date change and the income of divested businesses, our underlying
operating companies income increased $34 million, or 16.6%. This increase was
due primarily to an $18 million increase attributable to the Nabisco
acquisition, higher volume of $22 million and lower marketing, administration
and research costs of $15 million. This increase was partially offset by
unfavorable currency exchange rates of $18 million. If we had owned Nabisco
during the first quarter of 2000, our underlying operating companies income
would have increased 8.6%.

The following discusses operating results within each of Kraft Foods
International's business segments.

Europe, Middle East and Africa. Volume in Europe, Middle East and Africa
grew 0.9% from the first quarter of 2000. Excluding the volume of divested
businesses and the estimated shift in volume attributable to the century date
change, our underlying volume increased 1.9%, due primarily to the acquisition
of Nabisco. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of 2000,
underlying volume would have increased 0.4%, as gains in the developing
markets of Central and Eastern Europe and growth in many Western European
markets were mostly offset by lower volume in Germany and lower canned meats
volume in Italy. In beverages, coffee volume was lower in Germany due to
reduced trade purchases in anticipation of lower coffee prices. Snacks volume
increased, driven by confectionery and salty snacks. Cheese volume grew,
driven primarily by cream cheese in Italy, Belgium and Spain and process
cheese in the United Kingdom and Spain. In grocery, lower ketchup volume in
Germany was partially offset by higher spoonable dressing shipments in Spain
and Greece.

Operating revenue decreased $136 million, or 8.3%, from the first quarter
of 2000. Excluding the estimated shift in revenue attributable to the century
date change and the revenue of divested businesses, our underlying operating
revenue decreased $104 million, or 6.5%. This decrease was due primarily to
unfavorable currency exchange rates of $118 million. Partially offsetting this
decrease was $12 million attributable to the Nabisco acquisition. If we had
owned Nabisco during the first quarter of 2000, underlying operating revenue
would have decreased 7.1%, due primarily to unfavorable currency exchange
rates.

Operating companies income increased $2 million, or 1.2%, over the first
quarter of 2000. Excluding the estimated shift in income attributable to the
century date change and the income of divested businesses, our underlying
operating companies income also increased $2 million, or 1.2%, over the first
quarter of 2000. This increase was due primarily to the impact of higher
volume of $14 million, partially offset by unfavorable currency exchange rates
of $12 million. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of 2000, our
underlying operating companies income would have increased 1.8%.

Latin America and Asia Pacific. Latin America and Asia Pacific volume grew
more than 100% from the first quarter of 2000, due primarily to the
acquisition of Nabisco. If we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of
2000, underlying volume would have increased 7.5% due to gains across most
categories. Beverages volume increased, due primarily to refreshment beverages
volume growth, including powdered soft drinks in
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Brazil, China, the Philippines and Argentina and juice concentrate in Brazil.
Snacks volume increased, driven primarily by higher biscuit volume in Brazil
and China. In confectionery, volume grew in Asia Pacific due to chewy candy in
China and Southeast Asia. Cheese volume increased, due primarily to cream
cheese in Australia, Japan and the Caribbean, and process cheese in Australia
and the Philippines. Grocery volume was higher, due primarily to higher
shipments of spoonable dressings in the Philippines.

Operating revenue increased $295 million, more than 100% over the first
quarter of 2000. Excluding the estimated shift in revenue attributable to the
century date change and the revenue of divested businesses, our underlying
operating revenue increased $283 million, or 94.6%. This increase was due
primarily to a $275 million increase attributable to the Nabisco acquisition,
the impact of higher volume of $12 million and higher pricing of $6 million.
This increase was partially offset by unfavorable currency exchange rates. If
we had owned Nabisco during the first quarter of 2000, underlying operating
revenue would have increased 3.2%.

Operating companies income increased $37 million, more than 100% from the
first quarter of 2000. Excluding the estimated shift in income attributable to
the century date change and the income of divested businesses, our underlying
operating companies income increased $32 million, or 91.4%. This increase was
due primarily to an $18 million increase attributable to the Nabisco
acquisition, lower marketing, administration and research costs of $12 million
and higher volume of $8 million. This increase was partially offset by
unfavorable currency exchange rates. If we had owned Nabisco during the first
quarter of 2000, underlying operating companies income would have increased
31.4%.

2000 Compared with 1999

Kraft Foods International's volume increased 1.5% during 2000. Excluding
the impact of divested businesses and the estimated shift in volume
attributable to the century date change, volume increased 4.8%, of which 1.6
percentage points related to the impact of the 53rd week of shipments in 2000.

Operating revenue decreased $829 million, or 9.3%, from 1999. This decrease
was due primarily to unfavorable currency exchange rates of $887 million, the
impact of divestitures of $196 million, the estimated shift in revenue
attributable to the century date change of $52 million and lower pricing of
$30 million, due primarily to lower coffee prices. Partially offsetting these
decreases was the impact of higher volume of $291 million.

Operating companies income grew by $145 million, or 13.6%, to $1.2 billion,
due primarily to the impact of higher volume of $147 million, the gain on sale
of the French confectionery business of $139 million and higher margins of $84
million, primarily relating to lower commodity costs. Partially offsetting
these increases were unfavorable currency exchange rates of $96 million,
higher marketing, administration and research costs of $78 million, the
estimated shift in income attributable to the century date change of $26
million and the impact of divested businesses of $22 million. Excluding the
gain on sale of the French confectionery business, the income of divested
businesses and the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date
change, our underlying 2000 operating companies income of $1,050 million
increased 5.4% from $996 million in 1999.

The following discusses operating results within each of Kraft Foods
International's business segments.

Europe, Middle East and Africa. Total volume in Europe, Middle East and
Africa increased 0.5% over 1999. Adjusting for the estimated shift in volume
attributable to the century date change and excluding the volume from divested
businesses, volume grew 2.9% over 1999, with growth in all product categories.
In beverages, coffee volume benefited from strong growth in the developing
markets of Central and Eastern Europe and in the established markets of
Sweden, Austria, Italy and the United Kingdom. Volume in refreshment beverages
grew in Central and Eastern Europe, driven by the expansion of powdered soft
drinks. Volume growth in snacks reflected double-digit gains in salty snacks
on expansion into Central and Eastern Europe, as well as successful new
confectionery product launches and line extensions. Cheese volume grew on the
strength of Philadelphia cream cheese, reflecting successful marketing
programs across Europe and a re-
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launch in the Middle East. Volume also grew for process cheese in Italy and
Spain. In convenient meals, volume grew on the successful launch of new
Lunchables varieties in the United Kingdom and line extensions of packaged
dinners in Germany and Belgium. Volume grew in grocery, reflecting gains in
spoonable dressings, benefiting from effective marketing programs in Italy and
new product launches in Spain.

Operating revenue decreased $852 million, or 11.1%, from 1999. This decrease
was due primarily to unfavorable currency exchange rates of $830 million, the
impact of divestitures of $163 million, lower pricing of $60 million, due to
the effect of lower coffee commodity costs, and the estimated shift in revenue
attributable to the century date change of $28 million. These decreases were
partially offset by the favorable impact of higher volume of $186 million.

Operating companies income increased $124 million, or 13.9%, over 1999. This
increase was due primarily to the $139 million gain on the sale of the French
confectionery business, the impact of higher volume of $104 million and higher
margins of $70 million, primarily due to favorable coffee commodity costs.
Partially offsetting these increases were unfavorable currency exchange rates
of $97 million, higher marketing, administration and research costs of $58
million, the impact of divestitures of $20 million and the estimated shift in
income attributable to the century date change of $16 million. The increase in
marketing expense reflected new product introductions. Excluding the gain on
sale of the French confectionery business, the impact of divested businesses
and the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date change, our
underlying 2000 operating companies income of $856 million grew 2.5% from $835
million in 1999.

Latin America and Asia Pacific. Latin America and Asia Pacific volume grew
5.1% over 1999. Adjusting for the estimated shift in volume attributable to the
century date change and excluding the volume from divested businesses, volume
grew 11.9% over 1999, led by strong growth in Brazil, Australia, China, the
Philippines, Indonesia, Japan and Korea and higher exports to the Caribbean.
Beverages volume grew due to increased coffee volume in the Caribbean and
China. Refreshment beverages volume grew strongly, benefiting from new flavors
in Brazil, successful marketing programs in China and the Philippines, and
expansion into Thailand. Snacks volume gains were driven by double-digit
confectionery volume growth in Asia Pacific, reflecting new product launches in
Indonesia, China and the Philippines. In Latin America, volume benefited from
the launch of new chocolate products in Brazil. Cheese volume grew, driven by
successful marketing and promotion of Philadelphia cream cheese in Australia
and Japan, as well as gains in process cheese in the Philippines and Indonesia.
Convenient meals volume grew, led by exports of macaroni & cheese dinners to
Asian markets. Grocery volume grew on higher shipments of yeast spread in
Australia and increased shipments of gelatins and cereals to Asia.

Operating revenue increased $23 million, or 1.9%, over 1999, due primarily
to the impact of higher volume of $105 million and increased pricing of $30
million. Partially offsetting these increases were unfavorable currency
exchange rates of $57 million, the impact of divestitures of $33 million and
the estimated shift in revenue attributable to the century date change of $24
million.

Operating companies income grew $21 million, or 12.5%, over 1999, due
primarily to higher volume of $43 million and pricing of $14 million. Partially
offsetting these increases were higher marketing, administration and research
costs of $20 million and the estimated shift in income attributable to the
century date change of $10 million. Excluding the estimated shift in income
attributable to the century date change and the impact of divested businesses,
our underlying 2000 operating companies income of $194 million grew 20.5% from
$161 million in 1999.

1999 Compared with 1998

Kraft Foods International's volume decreased 1.8% during 1999. Excluding
divested businesses and the estimated shift in volume attributable to the
century date change, underlying volume decreased 0.1%.

Operating revenue decreased $771 million, or 8.0%, from 1998. This decrease
was due primarily to lower pricing of $366 million, resulting from lower coffee
commodity costs, unfavorable currency exchange rates of $303 million and the
impact of divestitures.
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Operating companies income grew 0.9% over 1998. This increase was due
primarily to higher margins of $79 million, resulting from lower commodity
costs, and the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date
change of $13 million. Partially offsetting this growth were higher marketing,
administration and research costs of $47 million and unfavorable currency
exchange rates.

The following discusses operating results within each of Kraft Foods
International's business segments.

Europe, Middle East and Africa. Volume in Europe, Middle East and Africa
decreased 2.5% from 1998. Excluding the impact of divested businesses and the
estimated shift in volume attributable to the century date change, our
underlying volume decreased 0.3%, as lower snacks volume was partially offset
by volume gains in beverages, convenient meals and grocery. In beverages,
coffee volume grew in France, Spain, Denmark, Switzerland, Hungary and the
Slovak Republic. In refreshment beverages, volume benefited from the expansion
of powdered soft drinks in Central and Eastern Europe. In convenient meals,
volume growth was driven by the launch of lunch combinations in Germany and
their success in the United Kingdom. In snacks, confectionery volume was lower
due to economic weakness in Russia and other parts of Eastern Europe, as well
as unusually hot summer weather across Europe.

During 1999, operating revenue decreased $631 million, or 7.6%, from 1998.
This decrease was due primarily to lower pricing of $378 million, resulting
from lower coffee commodity costs, the impact of divestitures of $167 million
and unfavorable currency exchange rates. These decreases were partially offset
by the estimated shift in revenue attributable to the century date change of
$14 million.

Operating companies income increased $11 million, or 1.2%, over 1998. This
increase was due primarily to higher margins of $63 million, driven by
favorable coffee and cocoa commodity costs; favorable product mix of $24
million; and the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date
change of $8 million. Partially offsetting these increases were higher
marketing, administration and research costs of $49 million, the impact of
divestitures of $14 million and unfavorable currency exchange rates of $21
million. Favorable product mix resulted from lower volume in lower-margin
products in Russia and Eastern Europe. Higher marketing expense reflected
product launches in Western Europe. Excluding divested businesses and the
estimated shift in income attributable to the century date change, our
underlying 1999 operating companies income of $835 million grew 2.1% from $818
million in 1998.

Latin America and Asia Pacific. Latin America and Asia Pacific volume
increased 0.8% over 1998. Excluding the impact of divestitures and the
estimated shift in volume attributable to the century date change, our
underlying volume increased 0.8%, driven by growth in Asia Pacific, reflecting
gains in cheese, convenient meals and grocery volumes. In cheese, higher
volume was reported in Australia, Japan, the Philippines and Indonesia. In
grocery, volume benefited from growth in Australia, reflecting gains in
spoonable and pourable salad dressings and peanut butter. This increase was
partially offset by lower volume in Latin America, due primarily to lower
confectionery volume in Brazil and lower powdered soft drinks volume in
Argentina. Lower powdered soft drinks volume in Argentina reflected sales lost
to cola products as cola producers continued to reduce prices.

During 1999, operating revenue decreased $140 million, or 10.3%, from 1998,
due primarily to unfavorable currency exchange rates of $156 million and the
impact of divestitures of $24 million. These decreases were partially offset
by the estimated shift in revenue attributable to the century date change of
$12 million, higher pricing of $12 million and the impact of higher volume of
$10 million.

Operating companies income decreased by $2 million, or 1.2%, from 1998, due
primarily to unfavorable currency exchange rates of $15 million and
unfavorable product mix of $12 million. These decreases were partially offset
by higher pricing of $16 million, the estimated shift in income attributable
to the century date change of $5 million and lower marketing, administration
and research costs. The unfavorable product mix reflected lower powdered soft
drinks volume in Argentina and lower confectionery volume in Brazil. Excluding
the estimated shift in income attributable to the century date change and the
impact of divested businesses, underlying 1999 operating companies income of
$161 million decreased 4.7% from $169 million in 1998.
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Financial Condition and Liquidity

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities. During the first quarter of 2001,
our net cash provided by operating activities was $2 million compared with $548
million in the first quarter of 2000. The decrease in net cash provided by
operating activities reflects unusual timing of payments and receipts as
follows:

. The estimated $155 million shift in cash outflows from the first quarter
of 2000 to the fourth quarter of 1999 attributable to the century date
change.

. The 53rd week in the fourth quarter of 2000 resulted in the collection of
$80 million of accounts receivable from holiday sales. We would normally
have collected these receivables in the first quarter of 2001.

. We paid taxes of $76 million in the first quarter of 2001 related to the
gain on the sale of our French confectionery business in 2000.

. Our cash spending on other working capital items increased $248 million
as compared with the first quarter of 2000, due primarily to the timing
of marketing spending and the payment of accrued salaries and benefits,
as well as severance and change in control costs due to the acquisition
of Nabisco.

While our operating cash flow was unusually low in the first quarter of 2001,
we estimate that net cash provided by operating activities will be
approximately $3.0 billion for the year 2001.

During 2000, our net cash provided by operating activities was $3.3 billion,
compared with $2.7 billion in 1999 and $2.3 billion in 1998. The increase in
2000 operating cash flow over 1999 primarily reflected increased net earnings
of $248 million and reduced levels of receivables and inventories of $318
million, which included the estimated shift in working capital attributable to
the century date change. The increase in 1999 operating cash flows over 1998
primarily reflected higher net earnings of $121 million and a reduced level of
receivables of $476 million, offset in part by a $179 million increase in
inventories. The change in 1999 inventories reflected the estimated shift in
working capital attributable to the century date change. Nabisco's operating
cash flows are not included in our operating cash flows for any of the years
presented because its results of operations were not included with ours.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities. During the first quarter of 2001, our
net cash used in investing activities was $194 million, down from $440 million
in 2000. This decrease primarily reflects the decline in cash used for
acquisitions. During the first quarter of 2000, we purchased Boca Burger and
Balance Bar for an aggregate cost of $358 million. During the first quarter of
2001, we purchased coffee businesses in Romania and Morocco for an aggregate
purchase price of $33 million.

During 2000, net cash used in investing activities was $16.1 billion, up
from $669 million in 1999 and $763 million in 1998. The increase in 2000
primarily reflected the purchase of Nabisco in December 2000.

Our capital expenditures increased to $906 million in 2000 from $860 million
in 1999 and $841 million in 1998. These expenditures were made primarily to
modernize our manufacturing facilities, lower our cost of production and expand
our production capacity for our growing product lines. We expect capital
expenditures to be approximately $1.3 billion in 2001 and to be funded from
operations. The expected increase in 2001 spending reflects the inclusion of
Nabisco's operations and expenditures related to the integration of the Nabisco
business. The majority of integration expenditures in 2001 represents
information systems costs to bring Nabisco's headquarters, sales offices and
plants in line with Kraft's systems, and increased spending on machinery and
equipment as we consolidate Nabisco and Kraft production worldwide.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities. During the first quarter of 2001,
our financing activities provided net cash of $164 million, compared with $72
million used in financing activities during 2000. This difference was due
primarily to net proceeds from the increase in the amounts due to Philip Morris
in the first quarter of 2001, compared with net debt repayments during the
first quarter of 2000.
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During 2000, financing activities provided net cash of $13.0 billion, as we
issued $15.0 billion of long-term notes payable to Philip Morris in connection
with the Nabisco acquisition, paid dividends of $1.0 billion and repaid debt.
During 1999 and 1998, we used net cash in financing activities primarily to pay
dividends of $3.0 billion in 1999 and $2.2 billion in 1998.

Working Capital, Debt and Liquidity. In managing our business, we attempt to
reduce working capital to minimum levels. Our working capital deficit at March
31, 2001, was $1 million, as compared to a deficit of $438 million at December
31, 2000. This change was due primarily both to a decrease in accounts payable,
reflecting the timing of payments, and to higher raw material purchases,
primarily cheese, in advance of rising commodity costs.

Our working capital at December 31, 1999 was $517 million, as compared to a
working capital deficit of $438 million at December 31, 2000. Contributing to
the 2000 decrease were reductions in accounts receivable and inventories of
$379 million, due primarily to our continued management of these assets and a
reduction of approximately $150 million of inventories that were maintained at
the end of 1999 in advance of the century date change. Also contributing to
this decrease was our acquisition of Nabisco, which further reduced working
capital at December 31, 2000 by $497 million.

Our total debt, including intercompany accounts payable to Philip Morris,
was $26.2 billion at March 31, 2001, and $25.8 billion at December 31, 2000.
Our debt-to-equity ratio was 1.8 at March 31, 2001, and at December 31, 2000.
Our total debt, including intercompany accounts payable to Philip Morris, was
$7.8 billion at December 31, 1999. Our debt-to-equity ratio was 0.6 at December
31, 1999. The increases in our debt and debt-to-equity ratio in 2000 were the
result of our borrowings to fund the acquisition of Nabisco.

In connection with the acquisition of Nabisco, Philip Morris entered into a
$9.0 billion, 364-day revolving credit agreement, expiring in October 2001. We
anticipate that Philip Morris will transfer the credit facility to us following
this offering or, alternatively, we may enter into a new facility. The
principal conditions to the assignment of the existing facility are the
completion of this offering, the completion of satisfactory documentation and
covenants, and our maintaining our existing credit ratings described below.
There are no borrowings currently outstanding under this credit facility and we
do not expect that there will be any outstanding borrowings if and when it is
transferred to us. We intend to use either the $9.0 billion facility or a new
facility to support commercial paper borrowings, the proceeds of which will be
used to retire a portion of our long-term notes payable to Philip Morris. In
addition, we maintain committed and uncommitted credit facilities with a number
of lending institutions amounting to approximately $430 million, of which
approximately $284 million were unused at December 31, 2000. We maintain these
facilities primarily to meet short-term working capital needs of our
international businesses.

We issued $15.0 billion of notes payable to Philip Morris due in 2002 in
connection with the acquisition of Nabisco. $11.0 billion of these notes
payable bear interest at 7.75% and the balance of the notes bear interest at
7.40%. Previously, we had issued a note payable to Philip Morris in the
principal amount of $5.0 billion bearing interest at 7.00% due in 2009 and two
Swiss franc notes payable to Philip Morris, the first in the principal amount
of $692 million bearing interest at 3.58% and due in 2006, and the second in
the principal amount of $715 million bearing interest at 4.58% and due in 2008.
Subsequent to March 31, 2001, we refinanced the two long-term Swiss franc notes
payable to Philip Morris with short-term Swiss franc borrowings from Philip
Morris at variable interest rates based on six-month LIBOR plus twenty-five
basis points. The United States dollar denominated notes must be prepaid from
the proceeds of this offering and future external financings, other than
proceeds from future external financings intended to refinance maturing
indebtedness. All notes payable to Philip Morris must be prepaid in their
entirety on the date on which Philip Morris ceases to control at least 50% of
the voting power of our capital stock. Our cash from operations will not be
sufficient to repay the indebtedness to Philip Morris due in 2002. Accordingly,
we will seek to refinance this indebtedness. The nature and amount of our long-
term and short-term debt and the proportionate amount of
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each can be expected to vary significantly as we repay Philip Morris with
proceeds from commercial paper borrowings. We intend to refinance the
commercial paper with the issuance of long-term debt as market conditions
permit.

Following the repayment of debt to Philip Morris with the net proceeds from
this offering, we will have long-term notes payable to Philip Morris of
approximately $13.0 billion and we anticipate that our total debt will be
approximately $17.8 billion and will result in annual interest expense of
approximately $1.3 billion. In addition, we anticipate that the integration of
Nabisco will result in additional costs of $500 million to $600 million, the
majority of which will require cash payments for severance obligations. The
integration of Nabisco may further result in charges related to existing Kraft
facilities of $200 million to $300 million, less than 10% of which will require
cash payments.

Philip Morris and certain of its affiliates provide us with various
services, including planning, legal, treasury, accounting, auditing, insurance,
human resources, office of the secretary, corporate affairs, information
technology and tax services. In 2001, we will enter into a formal agreement
with Philip Morris providing for a continuation of these services, the cost of
which is expected to be approximately $300 million in 2001.

We believe that our cash from operations and existing credit facilities will
be sufficient to meet our working capital needs and planned capital
expenditures in 2001. However, we will not be able to meet the 2002 maturities
of our notes payable to Philip Morris without external borrowings. Philip
Morris has informed us that in the event we are unable to obtain such external
borrowings due to capital market conditions, it would extend the maturities of
our notes payable to Philip Morris until we are able to do so.

Our credit rating by Moody's is "P-1" in the commercial paper market and
"A2" for long-term debt obligations. Our credit rating by Standards & Poor's is
"A1" in the commercial paper market and "A" for long-term debt obligations.
There is no assurance that we can maintain these ratings, and a ratings
reduction could result in higher interest costs.

Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk, primarily related to foreign exchange rates,
commodity prices and interest rates. We actively monitor these exposures. To
manage these exposures, we enter into a variety of derivative financial
instruments to reduce our exposure to market risk by creating offsetting
exposures. Our objective is to reduce, where it is deemed appropriate to do so,
fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign
currency exchange rates, commodity prices and interest rates. It is our policy
and practice to use derivative financial instruments only to the extent
necessary to manage our exposures. Since we use currency rate-sensitive and
commodity price-sensitive instruments to hedge a certain portion of our
existing and anticipated transactions, we expect that any loss in value for
those instruments generally would be offset by increases in the value of those
hedged transactions. We do not use derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes.

Foreign Exchange Rates. We are exposed to foreign currency exchange
movements, primarily in European, Canadian, Australian, Asian and Latin
American currencies. Consequently, we enter into various contracts, which
change in value as foreign currency exchange rates change, to preserve the
value of commitments and anticipated transactions. We use foreign currency
option and forward contracts to hedge certain transaction exposures and
anticipated foreign currency cash flows. We also enter into short-term currency
swap contracts, primarily to hedge intercompany financing transactions
denominated in foreign currencies. At March 31, 2001, we had option and forward
foreign exchange contracts, principally for the Canadian dollar, the Japanese
yen and the British pound. The aggregate notional amounts of these contracts
were $315 million for both the purchase and sale of foreign currencies. At
December 31, 2000 and 1999, we had option and forward foreign currency exchange
contracts, principally for the Japanese yen, the Australian dollar and the
Euro. The aggregate notional amounts of these contracts were $237 million and
$231 million, respectively, for both the purchase and sale of foreign
currencies.
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Commodity Prices. We are exposed to price risk related to anticipated
purchases of certain commodities used as raw materials by our businesses.
Accordingly, we enter into commodity future, forward and option contracts to
manage the fluctuations in prices of anticipated purchases. These contracts are
primarily for cheese, coffee, cocoa, milk, sugar, wheat, corn and, beginning in
2000, energy. At March 31, 2001, we had net long commodity positions of $601
million. At December 31, 2000 and 1999, we had net long commodity positions of
$617 million and $163 million, respectively. Unrealized gains or losses on net
commodity positions were insignificant at March 31, 2001, and December 31, 2000
and 1999.

Interest Rates. We intend to manage our exposure to interest rate risk
through the proportion of fixed rate debt and variable rate debt in our total
debt portfolio. At December 31, 2000, nearly all of our debt was long-term at
fixed rates, with the majority of it being indebtedness to Philip Morris.
Subsequent to March 31, 2001, we refinanced the two long-term Swiss franc notes
payable to Philip Morris with short-term Swiss franc borrowings from Philip
Morris at variable interest rates based on six-month LIBOR plus twenty-five
basis points. We intend to repay a portion of our fixed-rate debt with proceeds
from this offering. Following this offering, provided various conditions are
met, Philip Morris may assign to us a $9.0 billion, 364-day revolving credit
agreement maturing in October 2001 that will enable us to borrow on a short-
term basis at variable rates. Alternatively, we may enter into a new revolving
credit agreement. Our intent is to use the revolving credit agreement as
support for commercial paper borrowings, rather than borrowing against it.

Value at Risk. We use a value at risk computation to estimate the potential
one-day loss in the fair value of our interest rate-sensitive financial
instruments and to estimate the potential one-day loss in pre-tax earnings of
our foreign currency and commodity price-sensitive derivative financial
instruments. The computation estimate includes our:

debt;

short-term investments;

foreign currency forwards, swaps and options; and
commodity futures, forwards and options.

Anticipated transactions, foreign currency trade payables and receivables
and net investments in foreign subsidiaries, which the foregoing instruments
are intended to hedge, are excluded from the computation.

The computation estimates are made assuming normal market conditions, using
a 95% confidence interval. We used a "variance/co-variance" model to determine
the observed interrelationships between movements in interest rates and various
currencies. These interrelationships were determined by observing interest rate
and forward currency rate movements over the preceding quarter for the
calculation of value at risk amounts at December 31, 1999 and 2000. The
interest rate and forward currency rate movements were also monitored over each
of the four preceding quarters for the calculation of average value at risk
amounts during each year. The values of foreign currency and commodity options
do not change on a one-to-one basis with the underlying currency or commodity,
and are valued accordingly in the value at risk computation.

The estimated potential one-day loss in fair value of our interest rate-
sensitive instruments, primarily debt, under normal market conditions and the
estimated potential one-day loss in pre-tax earnings from foreign currency
exchange rates and commodity instruments under normal market conditions, as
calculated in the value at risk model, follow (in millions):

Pre-tax Earnings Impact Fair Value Impact

At At
12/31/99 Average High Low 12/31/99 Average High Low

Instruments sensitive to:

Interest rates............ $52 $71 $87 $52
Foreign currency rates.... $15 $15 $19 $12
Commodity prices.......... 13 9 13 5
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Pre-tax Earnings Impact Fair Value Impact

At At
12/31/00 Average High Low 12/31/00 Average High Low

Instruments sensitive to:

Interest rates............ $166 $83  $166 $39
Foreign currency rates.... $20 $20 $24 $15
Commodity prices.......... 9 8 9 7

This value at risk computation is a risk analysis tool designed to
statistically estimate the maximum probable daily loss from adverse movements
in interest rates, foreign currency rates and commodity prices under normal
market conditions. The computation does not purport to represent actual losses
in fair value or earnings to be incurred by us, nor does it consider the effect
of favorable changes in market rates. We cannot predict actual future movements
in market rates and do not present these results to be indicative of future
movements in such market rates or to be representative of any actual impact
that future changes in market rates may have on our future results or financial
position.

New Accounting Standards

The Financial Accounting Standards Board has issued standards that mandate
the accounting for derivative financial instruments. Effective January 1, 2001,
we adopted these standards. These standards require that all of our derivative
financial instruments be recorded on our combined balance sheets at their fair
value as either assets or liabilities. Changes in the fair value of derivatives
are recorded each period in earnings or accumulated other comprehensive losses.
How the derivative is recorded depends upon whether it is designated and
effective as part of a hedge transaction and, if it is, the type of hedge
transaction. Gains and losses on derivative instruments reported in accumulated
other comprehensive losses are reclassified as earnings in the periods during
which earnings are affected by the hedged item. The adoption of these new
standards did not have a material effect on net earnings (less than $1 million)
or accumulated other comprehensive losses (less than $1 million). During the
quarter ended March 31, 2001, accumulated other comprehensive losses increased
by $5 million due to hedging transactions, offset by $5 million reclassified
from accumulated other comprehensive losses to the combined statement of
earnings.

The Emerging Issues Task Force has issued pronouncements addressing the
recognition, measurement and statement of earnings classification for certain
sales incentives. These pronouncements will be effective in the first quarter
of 2002. As a result, certain items previously included in marketing,
administration and research costs on our combined statements of earnings will
be recorded as reductions of operating revenue. Upon adoption, we will
reclassify prior period amounts to conform to the new requirements. Due to
anticipated additional consideration of this pronouncement by the EITF, we are
currently unable to quantify the impact of adoption. We presently expect that
adoption and subsequent application of this pronouncement will not have a
material effect on our financial position or results of operations. The EITF
also issued a pronouncement addressing the statement of earnings classification
of shipping and handling costs billed to vendors. This pronouncement was
effective for the fourth quarter of 2000, but did not have an impact on our
combined financial statements.

In the first quarter of 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued an Exposure Draft related to business combinations. If the final rules
are adopted as proposed, as of January 1, 2002, we will no longer be required
to amortize our goodwill as a charge to earnings. In addition, we will be
required to periodically review our goodwill for potential impairment. If an
impairment is found to exist, a charge will be taken against earnings in our
combined statement of earnings. We cannot currently determine the amount of an
impairment charge, if any, that would be recorded upon adoption.
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Overview

BUSINESS

We are the largest branded food and beverage company headquartered in the
United States and the second largest in the world based on 2000 pro forma
revenue. We generated 2000 pro forma revenue of $34.7 billion and 2000 pro
forma earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization of
$6.3 billion. Our brands are sold in more than 140 countries and, according to
A.C. Nielsen, are enjoyed in 99.6% of the households in the United States.
Consumers of all ages around the world enjoy our brands, whether at home or
away from home, across the entire spectrum of food and beverage occasions:
breakfast, lunch, dinner and snacks.

We have a superior brand portfolio created and supported through dynamic
product innovation, worldclass marketing, experienced management, global scale
and strategic acquisitions. Our portfolio includes 61 brands with 2000 revenue
over $100 million, accounting for 75% of our 2000 pro forma revenue. Seven of
our brands, shown below, had 2000 revenue over $1 billion, accounting for 40%
of our 2000 pro forma revenue.

[LOGO

[LOGO

[LOGO

[LOGO

[LOGO

[LOGO

[LOGO

OF

OF

OF

OF

OF

OF

OF

KRAFT]

NABISCO]

OSCAR MAYER]

POST]

MAXWELL HOUSE]

PHILADELPHIA]
. The #1 cream cheese brand in the world

JACOBS]

. The #1 cheese brand in the world, as

well as our best known brand for salad
and spoonable dressings, packaged
dinners, barbecue sauce and other
products

. The umbrella brand for the #1 cookie and

cracker business in the world, including
nine of our $100 million brands

. The #1 processed meats brand in the

United States

. The #3 brand of ready-to-eat cereals in

the United States

One of the leading coffee brands in the
world

. The #1 roast and ground coffee brand in

Western Europe
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Our other brands with 2000 revenue exceeding $100 million include many
additional household favorites, such as:

Carte Noire--the #1 coffee brand in France;
Gevalia--the #1 coffee brand in Scandinavia;

Jell-0--the #1 dry packaged and refrigerated ready-to-eat gelatins
and puddings brand in the United States;

Lacta--the #1 chocolate confectionery brand in Brazil;

Lunchables--the #1 lunch combinations brand in the United States
and Europe;

Planters--the #1 brand in snack nuts worldwide; and

Tang--the #1 brand in powdered soft drinks worldwide.

We hold the #1 global share position in eleven product categories. In the
United States, based on dollar shares, we hold the #1 share position in 23 of
our 25 most profitable categories or, based on volume or equivalent unit
shares, in 21 of these 25 categories. In addition, based on volume or
equivalent unit shares, we hold the #1 share position in 21 of our 25 most
profitable international country categories. We strive to be the category
leader in all of our principal markets. Category leaders often achieve higher
margins than other category participants, due to the benefits of scale,
consumer loyalty and retail customer emphasis that are frequently associated
with category leadership.

We concentrate our product innovation, marketing, management and investment
efforts on our $100 million brands and selected other brands that enjoy strong
regional recognition. We support these core brands with a disciplined program
of investment in new product development and worldclass marketing to generate
increased revenue growth and profitability. We combine this brand support with
our global infrastructure and our knowledge of local consumer tastes and
preferences to maintain or achieve leading category positions in the regions in
which we operate.

We believe our ability to execute brand-building and growth-oriented
marketing and sales strategies is among the best in the global food and
beverage industry. We are one of the largest food and beverage advertisers in
the world, with 2000 pro forma advertising expenditures exceeding $1.4 billion.
Our advertising has won numerous awards around the world for its originality
and effectiveness. Our execution with the retail trade is also extremely
strong. In the 2000 Cannondale Associates PoweRanking(TM) survey of United
States retailers, we ranked #1 among all consumer packaged goods companies as
offering the "Best combination of growth and profitability" to retailers. We
also ranked #1 among all food and beverage companies in the "Best of the Best"
composite ranking and in every surveyed category, including "Cons